

### Dr. Y.S.R. UNIVERSITY OF HEALTH SCIENCES,





#### **PROSPECTUS**

### **COMPETENT AUTHORITY QUOTA**

ADMISSIONS INTO PG DENTAL DEGREE / DIPLOMA COURSES UNDER COMPETENT AUTHORITY QUOTA SEATS FOR THE ACADEMIC YEAR 2024-25



Official Website

For Notifications, Notices, Online Application, Counselling etc.

https://drysr.uhsap.in

Schedule of availability of online Application form

09.00 PM On 20.07.2024 to 09.00 PM On 24.07.2024

- i. Online portal for applying admission to MDS course will be available during the above period as per server time (Refer User Manual displayed on the website).
- ii. Candidates are advised to ensure that the online application submitted is complete in all aspects.
- iii. Change of particulars, additions/deletions in the online Application shall not be entertained under any circumstances after submission and on display of Final Merit List.
- iv. Incomplete online applications will NOT be accepted.
- v. Candidate is advised to submit only one Online Application.
- vi. Candidates should ensure that all information entered in the online application are true and correct. The University reserves its right to amend the prospectus and make any modification in this prospectus during any phase of counselling process and to implement/ adhere to any modification of DGHS/ MCC time to time

|    | Dr. YSR UNIVERSITY OF HEALTH S                                      | SCIENCES::AP::VIJAYAWADA-08  |
|----|---|--|
|    | ADMISSIONS INTO PG DENTAL DEGRI<br>ACADEMIC YEA<br>IMPORTANT DATES  | AR 2024-25   |
| 1. | Date of Notification  | 20-07-2024   |
| 2. | Availability of online Application forms                            | 09.00 PM On 20.07.2024<br>to<br>09.00 PM On 24.07.2024   |
| 3. | Commencement of classes   |  |
| 4. | Date of release of provisional merit list of the applied candidates | Candidates are informed to visit Dr.YSR UHS official website regularly for Schedules/latest updates/ allotments/ |
| 5. | Date of release of Final Merit position                             | Notices/News & Events pertaining to counsellings.  |
| 6. | Dates of exercising web options                                     | https://drysr.uhsap.in   |
| 7. | Closure of admissions   | https://drysr.uhsap.in   |

- Note 1. Entire Application process is through online mode only, including uploading of Images, scanned copies of Original Certificates/documents and payment of fees etc. Therefore, candidates are not required to send printout of application form/verification form etc. to the University. No offline applications will be accepted.
  - 2. All further notifications will be displayed on University website only. **No Individual** intimations will be sent. Please visit the university website <a href="https://drysr.uhsap.in">https://drysr.uhsap.in</a> regularly for subsequent notifications / instructions till the closure of admissions.
  - **3.** Printout of application, Provisional Verification form along with Original Certificates should be produced at the time of admission at college.

#### **HELPLINE NUMBERS:**

Contact the following numbers in case of any difficulty while submitting the online application form:

| 1. | For clarifications on<br>Regulations  | 8978780501, 7997710168 |                          |
|----|---------------------------------------|------------------------|--------------------------|
| 2. | For Technical difficulties            | 9000780707             | 10.00 AM to 6.00 PM only |
| 3. | For clarifications on payment gateway | 9000780707             |                          |

Note B: 1. All the dates are tentative and the University reserves the right to change them without assigning any reason or advance notice.

2. Mere submission of application does not confer any right for a seat.

|        | CONTENTS  |          |
|--------|---|----------|
| Sl.No. | PARTICULARS   | PAGE NO. |
| 1      | REGULATIONS   | 5        |
| 2      | ELIGIBILITY   | 5        |
| 3      | TUITION FEE STRUCTURE   | 6        |
| 4      | ALLOTMENT OF SEATS  | 6        |
| 5      | RESERVATION IN FAVOUR OF LOCAL CANDIDATES                         | 6        |
| 6      | LOCAL AREA  | 7        |
| 7      | LOCAL CANDIDATES  | 7-9      |
| 8      | RESERVATIONS  | 10       |
| 9      | RESERVATIONS UNDER PWBD CATEGORY                                  | 10       |
| 10     | APPLICATIONS THROUGH ONLINE                                       | 11       |
| 11     | PROCEDURE OF FILLING ONLINE APPLICATION FORM                      | 11       |
| 12     | CERTIFICATES REQUIRED BEFORE FILLING THE APPLICATION FORM ON-LINE | 12       |
| 13     | FEE STRUCTURE, REGISTRATION & PROCESSING FEE                      | 13       |
| 15     | MERIT LISTS   | 14       |
| 16     | PROCEDURE FOR ALLOTMENT OF SEATS                                  | 14       |
| 17     | ADMISSION RULES   | 14       |
| 18     | ATTENDANCE  | 15       |
| 19     | LEAVE   | 15       |
| 20     | MATERNITY LEAVE   | 15       |
| 21     | BREAK OF STUDY AND RE-ADMISSION                                   | 15       |
| 22     | PRIVATE PRACTICE  | 15       |
| 23     | COLLEGE REGULATIONS   | 15       |
| 24     | CLOSURE OF ADMISSIONS   | 15       |
| 25     | COMMENCEMENT OF THE COURSE  | 16       |
| 26     | DURATION OF COURSE  | 16       |
| 27     | DISSERTATION  | 16       |
| 28     | MIGRATION AND TRANSFER OF CANDIDATES                              | 16       |
| 29     | POWERS OF PRINCIPALS  | 16       |
| 30     | POWERS OF DR. YSR UHS   | 17       |
| 31     | ANTI RAGGING ACT  | 17       |
| 32     | INSTRUCTIONS TO CANDIDATES ON COUNSELLING PROCEDURE               | 18-20    |
| 33     | ANNEXURE – I  | 21-25    |
| 34     | ANNEXURE – II (Form of Caste Certificate)                         | 26       |
| 35     | ANNEURE – III (Discontinuation Certificate)                       | 27       |
| 36     | ANNEXURE – IV (Declaration by the candidates)                     | 28       |
| 37     | ANNEXURE - V (Re-admission/Break of Study)                        | 29       |

| 38 | ANNEXURE - VI (Re-admission/Break of Study) | 30    |
|----|---|-------|
| 39 | ANNEXURE- VII (For Non-Local Candidates)    | 31    |
| 40 | ANNEXURE- VIII (For Non-Local Candidates)   | 32    |
| 41 | ANNEXURE – IX (For Non-Local Candidates)    | 33    |
| 42 | FAQs  | 34-37 |



#### Dr. YSR UNIVERSITY OF HEALTH SCIENCES, A.P., VIJAYAWADA

Prospectus for admissions into "Post Graduate Dental Degree / Diploma Courses under Competent Authority Quota for the academic year 2024-25"

#### **REGULATIONS:**

The following are the Regulations for admission into the Competent Authority Quota (CQ)/State quota (SQ) seats of all Post Graduate Dental Degree/Diploma Courses in all the Dental Colleges affiliated to Dr. YSR UHS for the academic year 2024-25.

#### 1. NUMBER OF SEATS UNDER COMPETENT AUTHORITY QUOTA:

- a. Government Dental Colleges: 50% of the total available seats are in State quota under Competent Authority. 50% of seats are surrendered to AIQ which are filled by MCC, New Delhi.
- b. Private Un-Aided Non- Minority Dental Colleges: 50% of the total available seats are in Competent Authority Quota. Remaining 50% are under Management Quota(MQ).
- c. Provided that the candidates who got registered as Persons of Indian Origin (PIO) / Overseas Citizen of India (OCI) Cardholders on or after 04.03.2021 are eligible for admission only against any Non-Resident Indian seat or any supernumerary seat; and shall not be eligible for admission against any seat reserved exclusively for Indian Citizens.
- d. The details of the seats available under Competent Authority quota for the year 2024-25 will be displayed in the University website before the start of web counseling.
- e. As per NMC Letter No.N-P018(20)/5/2023-PGMEB-NMC/044351, dt.24-07-2023 all the State Counselling agencies shall make necessary arrangements for conducting the counselling in Online mode, for all the rounds including Stray vacancy round in Private Medical Colleges, from the academic year 2023-24. No, College/Institute should conduct the counselling, including the Stray vacancy round, in physical mode.
- f. As per G.O.Ms.No 85, HM & FW (C1) Dept., dt.20-07-2024, the Govt. of A.P has dispensed with In-Service quota in PG Dental Courses from the academic year 2024-25.

### 2. <u>ELIGIBILITY</u>: THE CANDIDATES WHO FULFILLED THE FOLLOWING CRITERIA ARE ELIGIBLE:

- 2.1 The applicant for admission to the PG Dental Degree/Diploma courses must have a B.D.S. Degree (Bachelor of Dental Surgery) from a recognized Dental college/University.
- 2.2 The candidates should have secured the following cutoff scores and above in NEET MDS-2024

| Name of category                              | Eligibility Criteria as per NBE, New Delhi | Cut-off scores<br>(Out of 960) |
|---|--|--------------------------------|
| General category                              | 50 <sup>th</sup> Percentile                | 263                            |
| SC/ST/BC/OBC (Including PwBD of SC/ST/BC/OBC) | 40 <sup>th</sup> Percentile                | 230                            |
| General PwBD                                  | 45 <sup>th</sup> Percentile                | 246                            |

- 2.3 Candidates should have completed internship by 30-06-2024.
- 2.4 The candidate shall produce certificate of registration with Dental Council of India / Any State Dental Council.

#### 3. Tuition Fee Structure:

8.5 Tuition fee for the current academic year 2024-25 will be as decided by the Govt. of A.P., subject to the outcome of W.P.Nos.32975, 33162 & 35090 of 2022. For previous fee structure Refer point 8.9

#### 4. ALLOTMENT OF SEATS:

- a. As per G.O.Ms.No.86, HM&FW (C1) Dept., dt.20-07-2024, the Govt. of A.P. issued orders to de-notify Government Dental College & Hospital, Vijayawada as a state wide Institution and reclassify it as a Non-Statewide Institution from the academic year 2024-25 and to fall under the jurisdiction of Andhra University (AU).
  - b. All the affiliated dental colleges in the State of A.P. are non-statewide from the year 2024-25.
- 4.2 The Courses available at Private un-aided Non Minority Dental Colleges are Non-Statewide. Selection procedure for Competent Authority Quota seats shall be regulated as per the procedure envisaged in Annexure III of G.O.P.No.646, Education Dept., dated. 10.07.1979.

#### 5. RESERVATION IN FAVOUR OF THE LOCAL CANDIDATES:

Admission to 85% of the seats shall be reserved in favour of the local candidates of AU & SVU Regions in relation to the local area as provided in A.P. Educational Institutions (Regulation of Admission) order, 1974 for Non-State wide courses as given in Annexure-III of GO (P) No. 646, Edu. (W1) Department, dt.10-7-1979.

- 5.1 As per Memo No.2459247/C1/2024, HM&FW (C1) Dept., dt.20-07-2024 Govt. of A.P., it is hereby clarified that all the 15% of the Unreserved seats in Medical/Dental colleges are now reserved exclusively for the Local candidates from the Andhra and Rayalaseema regions.
  - Candidates of OU local area are not eligible for MDS seats in the State of Andhra Pradesh.
  - Candidates of OU Local area with AP Domicile(APNL) are eligible for APUR seats in the State of Andhra Pradesh.
  - NL Candidates are not eligible for MDS Local seats in the State of Andhra Pradesh.
  - NL Candidates with AP Domicile(APNL) are eligible for APUR seats in the State of Andhra Pradesh.

#### 5.2 LOCAL AREA:

- 5.2.1 The part of the State comprising the Districts of Srikakulam, Vizianagaram, Visakhapatnam, East Godavari, West Godavari, Krishna, Guntur and Prakasam shall be regarded as the local area for the purposes of admission to the Andhra University, (Nagarjuna University) and to any other educational institution (other than a Statewide University or State-wide Educational Institution) which is subject to the control of the State Government and is situated in that part.
- 5.2.2 The part of the State comprising the Districts of Anantapur, Kadapa, Kurnool, Chittoor and Nellore shall be regarded as local area for the purposes of admission to Sri Venkateshwara University and to any other educational institution (other than a State-wide University or State-wide Educational Institution) which is subject to the control of the State Government and is situated in that part.

#### 5.3 LOCAL CANDIDATES:

- 5.3.1 A candidate for admission shall be regarded as local candidate in relation to a local area.
  - i) If he/she studied in an Educational Institution or Educational Institutions in such local area for a period of not less than 4 consecutive academic years ending with the academic year in which he/she appeared or as the case may be first appeared in relevant qualifying examination.

Or

- ii) Where during the whole or any part of the 4 consecutive academic years ending with the academic year in which he/she appeared or as the case may be first appeared for the relevant qualifying examination, he/she has not studied in Educational Institutions, if he/she had resided in that local area for a period of not less than 4 years immediately preceding the date of commencement of the relevant qualifying examination, in which he/she appeared or as the case may be first appeared.
- 5.3.2 For candidates who have taken admission before 2024-25 and completed BDS Degree from State Wide College:
  - A candidate for admission to any course of study who is not regarded as a local candidate under sub-regulation (5.2.1) in relation to any local area shall
  - i) If he/she has studied in educational institutions in the State for a period of not less than 7 consecutive academic years ending with academic year in which he/she appeared or as the case may be first appeared for the relevant qualifying examination be regarded as local candidate in relation to:
    - a) Such local area where he/she has studied for the maximum period out of the said period of 7 years.
    - b) Where the period of his/her study in two or more local areas are equal, such local area where he/she has last studied in such equal periods.

or

- ii) If during the whole or any part of the seven consecutive academic years ending with academic year in which he/she appeared or as the case may be first appeared for relevant qualifying examination, he/she has not studied in the educational institution in any local area, but he/she has resided in the State during the whole of the said period of 7 years be regarded as a local candidate in relation to
  - a) Such local area where he/she has resided for the maximum period out of the said period of 7 years.

or

b) Where the period of his/her residence in two or more local areas are equal, such local area where he/she has resided last in such equal periods.

or

c) Local status certificate issued by MRO for claiming as AP local as per Circular Nos.4136/SPF&MC/2015-5, dated.08.08.2016 and 4136/SPF&MC/2015-13, dt. 20.11.2017.

#### **EXPLANATION:** (for

(for purpose of this sub-regulation)

- i) Educational Institution" means a University or any Educational Institution recognized by the State Government, a University or any other Competent Authority.
- ii) Relevant qualifying examination in relation to admission to any course of study means the examination, a pass in which is the minimum educational qualification for admission to such course of study.

#### NOTE:

The relevant qualifying examination for admission into MDS courses is BDS examination. The question whether the candidate is a local candidate or not will be determined with reference to his/her first appearance in the Final BDS examination.

- iii) a) In reckoning the consecutive academic years during which a candidate has studied any period of interruption of his/her study by reasons of his/her failure to pass any examination and any period of his/her study in a Statewide University or a Statewide Educational Institution shall be disregarded.
  - b) The local/non local status of candidates who have taken admission before 2024-25 and passed BDS from Govt.Dental College, Vijayawada, Govt.Dental College, Hyderabad and Army College of Dental Sciences, Secunderabad will be decided basing on their study period prior to their admission into BDS course. The question whether any candidate for admission into any course of study has resided in any local area shall be determined with reference to the places where the candidate actually resided and not with reference to the residence of his/her parent or guardian
- While determining the number of seats to be reserved in favour of local candidates under regulation (4), any fraction of seat shall be counted as one, provided that there shall be one unreserved seat.

- 5.5 If a local candidate in respect of a local area is not available to fill any seats reserved or allocated in favour of local candidate in respect of that local area such seats shall be filled in as if it had not been reserved.
- 5.6 The applicant who claims to be local candidate with reference to sub-regulation 5.2.1 or 5.2.2 shall produce in the form of study certificate/certificates issued by the Head of the Educational Institution/Institutions concerned indicating the details of the year or years in which the candidate has studied in educational institution in such local area for a period of not less than 4/7 consecutive academic years ending with the academic year in which he/she appeared or as the case may be first appeared for the Final BDS examination.

Those who did not qualify as local candidate under sub-regulation 5.2.1 and 5.2.2 but claim to qualify by virtue of residence shall produce a certificate issued by an officer of the Revenue Department not below the rank of Mandal Revenue Officer independent charge of Subtaluk / Mandal in the form annexed to G.O.P.No.628, Education dated 25-7-1974.

- 5.7 The following categories are eligible to apply for admission to the remaining 15% of Unreserved seats.
- **5.7.1** As per Memo No.2459247/C1/2024, HM&FW (C1) Dept., dt.20-07-2024 Govt. of A.P., it is hereby clarified that all the 15% of the Unreserved seats in Medical/Dental colleges are now reserved exclusively for the Local candidates from the Andhra and Rayalaseema regions.
  - a) All the candidates eligible to be declared as local candidates of two local areas of State of Andhra Pradesh.
  - b) Candidates who have resided in the State of Andhra Pradesh for a total period of 10 years excluding periods of study outside the State or either of whose parent have resided in the State of Andhra Pradesh for a total period of ten years excluding period of employment outside the State.
  - c) Candidates who are children of parents who are in employment of the State of Andhra Pradesh or Central Government, Public Sector Corporations, Local Bodies, Universities and Educational Institutions other similar quasi Public Institutions within the State of Andhra Pradesh.
  - d) Candidates who are spouses of those in the employment of the State of Andhra Pradesh or Central Government, public sector corporations, Local Bodies, Universities and Educational Institutions recognized by the Government or University or other Competent Authority and similar quasi Government Institutions within the State of Andhra Pradesh."

NOTE: Relevant scanned original certificates must be uploaded along with application in respect of their claim for 15% Unreserved seats. In respect of proof of 10 years residence, the certificate should be obtained from the Revenue Authorities and the issuing Officer shall not be below the rank of Mandal Revenue Officer / Tahsildar

#### 6. RESERVATIONS:

6.1 Seats of Post Graduate Dental Degree and Diploma Courses are reserved for SC, ST and BC and BC sub groups as detailed below, which are called vertical reservations.

| S.No. | Category type | % of<br>Reservation |
|-------|---------------|---------------------|
| 1     | SC            | 15%                 |
| 2     | ST            | 6%                  |
| 3     | BC-A          | 7%                  |
| 4     | BC-B          | 10%                 |
| 5     | BC-C          | 1%                  |
| 6     | BC-D          | 7%                  |
| 7     | ВС-Е          | 4%                  |

6.2 Candidates claiming reservations under SC/ST/BC categories shall submit a permanent social status certificate issued by only Government of Andhra Pradesh/Telangana. The social status of SC/ST/BC candidates shall be subject to the scrutiny as per G.O.Ms.No.58 SW (J) Dept. Dt 12-5-97.

#### 7. RESERVATIONS UNDER PWBD CATEGORY:

- 1. There will be 5% Horizontal reservations for PwBD candidates
- 2. The candidates seeking the benefit of reservation under PwBD category should enclose a valid disability certificate issued not later than three months (03) prior to submitting his/her application.
- 3. The guidelines of Govt. of India and regulations of Dental Council of India (DCI) shall be observed in making admissions under PwD category.
- 4. The Medical Board constituted by the University will scrutinize/verify the disability certificates as per G.O.MS.No.31, Women development, Child welfare & disabled welfare (DW) department, dated.01-12-2009 and conduct a physical examination of the candidates claiming reservation under PwBD quota for confirmation of eligibility and the decision of Medical Board specially constituted for the purpose is final and binding on the candidates.

#### 8. APPLICATIONS THROUGH ONLINE:

- 8.1 The On-line application forms will be available on the Website from 09.00 PM on 20-07-2024 to 09.00 PM on 24-07-2024
- 8.2 The candidates are advised to take a print out of the Prospectus / Instructions from the website <a href="https://drysr.uhsap.in">https://drysr.uhsap.in</a> before proceeding to fill the application form.
- 8.3 The candidate should fill the online application form available on the Website with the data required-for, through internet. The online application form can be filled through any computer with internet connection. The candidate is advised to fill the online application form after going through the Prospectus by keeping all the Certificates ready to enter his/her correct data.

## 8.4. Procedure of filling online application form and payment of fee through online: (Please refer the User Manual displayed on the University website).

- a. The fee can be paid through Debit card/Credit card or Net Banking.
- b. The fee paid by the applicants is not refundable under any circumstances.
- c. Read the Notification, Prospectus/Regulations carefully regarding eligibility under local and non-local.
- d. The Registration number which will be sent to the registered mobile after entering the basic details, should be noted for further use. The Registration number should be kept confidential and should not be disclosed to others.
- e. The candidates should fill in all the correct details in the online application form and shall upload all the documents including the certificates which are mandatory.

# f. CERTIFICATES REQUIRED BEFORE FILLING THE APPLICATION FORM ON-LINE

The following Certificates are required to complete the application process. The certificates are to be scanned and kept ready to upload. Application fee has to be paid through online.

| S.No. | Details of Certificates   | File<br>Type      | Size of<br>File |
|-------|---|-------------------|-----------------|
| 1     | NEET MDS - 2024 – SCORE CARD (Mandatory)  | PDF               | 500 KB          |
| 2     | Date of Birth Certificate (SSC Marks Memo) (Mandatory)  | PDF               | 500 KB          |
| 3     | Provisional or Original BDS Degree Certificate (Mandatory)  | PDF               | 500 KB          |
| 4     | BDS study certificate. (Mandatory)  | PDF               | 500 KB          |
| 5     | Compulsory Rotatory Internship certificate (Mandatory)  | PDF               | 500 KB          |
| 6     | Copies of Temporary / Permanent Dental Council Registration from the respective State Dental Council. (Mandatory)   | PDF               | 500 KB          |
| 7     | If the candidate admitted before 2024-25 and passed BDS from Govt. Dental College, Vijayawada, Govt. Dental College, Hyderabad (or) Army College of Dental Sciences, Secunderabad, he / she has to submit study certificates from 6th to Intermediate / 10+2.   | PDF               | 500 KB          |
| 8     | For Non-Local candidates:  Minimum 10 years Study Certificates of Student / either of parents of Andhra Pradesh State, if BDS is from out side Andhra Pradesh State.  OR  Minimum 10 years Residence Certificate of Andhra Pradesh State of either of parents  OR  Current employment Certificate of either of parents, if working in Andhra Pradesh only | PDF               | 500 KB          |
| 9     | Caste Certificate, if applicable  | PDF               | 500 KB          |
| 10    | Photo Identity card having current residential address of the candidate (Aadhar Card) (Mandatory)   | PDF               | 500 KB          |
| 11    | Differently abled certificate issued by the Competent Authority as specified in the Regulations in case of PwBD (Person with disability) candidates.  | PDF               | 500 KB          |
| 12    | BDS transfer certificate/Migration Certificate (Mandatory)  | PDF               | 500 KB          |
| 13    | Local status Certificate issued by MRO of AP (candidates migrated from Telangana to Andhra Pradesh (If Applicable)  | PDF               | 500 KB          |
| 14    | PIO/OCI Certificate (if applicable)   | PDF               | 500 KB          |
| 15    | Other PG Degree Certificate (if applicable)   | PDF               | 500 KB          |
| 16    | Candidate's Latest passport size Photo (Mandatory)  | Jpg<br>or<br>jpeg | 100 KB          |
| 17    | Specimen Signature of the Candidate (Mandatory)   | Jpg<br>or<br>jpeg | 100 KB          |

#### 8.6 The Registration & Processing fee including 18% GST:

- 1. OC & BC Candidates ₹.7,080/- (6,000/- + 1,080/- GST 18%)

  (Registration fee ₹. 3,500/- + 630/- GST 18% & Processing fee ₹.2,500/- + 450/- GST 18%).
- 2. For SC & ST Candidates ₹.5,900/- (5,000/- + 900/- GST 18% (Registration fee ₹. 3,000/- + 540/- GST 18% & Processing fee ₹.2,000/- + 360/- GST 18%).

**Verification Fee:** In addition to the above said Registration & Processing fee:

- 1. The candidates who acquired their BDS Degree outside the AP State shall pay ₹.3,540/- (i.e., ₹.3,000/- + 540/- GST 18%)
- 2. The candidates who acquired their BDS Degree in Abroad/Foreign Country shall pay ₹.8,260/- (i.e., ₹.7,000/- + 1,260/- GST 18%)

The fee can be paid through Debit card / Credit card or Net Banking

- > The verification fee, registration fee and processing fee once paid will not be refunded or adjusted under any circumstances. Therefore, candidates are advised to check eligibility conditions thoroughly before applying for admission into PG Medical courses. Application form once submitted cannot be withdrawn and fee paid shall not be refunded/adjusted.
- 8.7 The candidates are advised to submit a printout of filled in online application form duly signed at the declaration area at the reporting college.

#### 8.8 Fee Structure:

#### **University Fee**:

All the selected candidates shall pay the Non - Refundable University Fee of ₹.23,600/-

8.9 TUITION FEE: Tuition fee structure for the current academic year 2024-25 will be as decided by the Govt. of Andhra Pradesh, subject to the outcome of W.P.Nos.32975, 33162 & 35090 of 2022.

Previous year (2023-24) fee structure for information:

| Name of the course           | Fee for Category-A<br>(CQ) seats |
|------------------------------|----------------------------------|
| Clinical Degree/Diploma      | ₹. 3,41,550/-                    |
| Para Clinical Degree/Diploma | ₹.3,07,395/-                     |

#### 9. MERIT LISTS:

- The merit position of the candidates applied shall be determined basing on NEET-MDS-2024 Ranks and as per their eligibility.
- After completion of the verification of data and certificates uploaded by the candidates, the University will release final merit position of the candidates eligible for exercising Web options.
- Candidates who are included in the final merit list will only be eligible for exercising web Options.

#### 10. Allotment of Seats:

The procedure for Admissions/Selection/Seat Matrix is as per the following Government Orders, subsequent amendments and any other orders that may be issued by the Govt. of A.P/Dr. YSR UHS from time to time for Non-service candidates wherever applicable:

- 1. G.O.Ms.No.89, dt.21-05-2014 of HM & FW (E1) Dept., Govt. of AP
- 2. G.O.Ms.No.58, dt.29-05-2020 of HM & FW (C1) Dept., Govt. of AP
- 3. G.O.Ms.No.136, dt.12-10-2021 of HM & FW (C1) Dept., Govt. of AP
- 4. G.O.Ms.No.85, dt.20-07-2024 of HM&FW (C1) Dept., Govt. of AP
- 5. G.O.Ms.No.86, dt.20-07-2024, HM&FW (C1) Dept., Govt. of AP
- 6. Memo No.2459247/C1/2024, dt.20-07-2024, HM&FW (C1) Dept., Govt. of AP

Further, the Orders, if any, as amended from time to time by the Government of Andhra Pradesh/Dental Council of India/Government of India are applicable.

#### 11. ADMISSION RULES:

- 11.1 The cutoff date for reporting at the allotted college by the selected candidates will be communicated in the allotment order.
- 11.2 All the candidates joining the Post Graduate Degree/ Diploma courses should execute bond on a stamped paper of ₹.100/- value as prescribed in Annexure-III to the effect that he / she will complete the prescribed period of training in the event of leaving the course, the candidate has to pay ₹.3,00,000/- + 18% GST to the University and shall also refund the amount received as stipend up to that date to the Government as notified by the University from time to time.
- 11.3 As per G.O.Ms.No.67, HM&FW (C1) Department dated 21-04-2017, candidates have to pay the discontinuation penalty of ₹. 3,00,000/- + 18% GST and they will be debarred for three years for admission into Post Graduate Dental Degree/Diploma courses at the colleges in the State of Andhra Pradesh for admission into PG Dental courses subject to receipt of orders from the Government if any and as notified by the University from time to time.

- 11.4 ATTENDANCE: Candidates selected for the various courses should be the whole time students. The candidate is required to put in a minimum of 80% attendance during each calendar year for being eligible to appear for the examination. In a year all 365 days will be considered as working days and students should get 80% attendance each year separately to get eligibility for appearing for University exams. The remaining days of absence (including maternity leave) will be considered for extension.
- 11.5 LEAVE: Students will be permitted to avail 30 days leave per year. No Post Graduate is allowed to go on leave more than 8 days at a stretch. In case the absence of the candidate availing Medical Leave / Maternity Leave / Any other Leave or unauthorized absence is beyond 30 days in a year, the study period of the candidate will be extended to the extent of such period. No other leave is permitted.
- 11.6 MATERNITY LEAVE: Women students can avail maternity leave up to 180 days only once in their MDS course of study and the study period will be extended to the extent of Maternity leave availed. The candidate shall not be eligible to appear in the University examination till the completion of study period as per DCI Regulations (Duration of course).
- 11.7 BREAK OF STUDY AND RE-ADMISSION: If a student is absent continuously for a period of 91 days or more and seeks permission to attend the course, his / her application in prescribed format vide annexure V & VI along with requisite fee through DD drawn in favour of Registrar, Dr YSR University of Health Sciences payable at Vijayawada shall be forwarded to the Registrar, Dr.YSR University of Health Sciences with the recommendation of the Principal. The candidates are advised to refer the regulations before submitting the application and paying the fee. If they fulfill the conditions, they may submit applications through the Principal of the College by paying the fee. A maximum of two spells of break of study is allowed during the entire period of course.
- 11.8 PRIVATE PRACTICE: No Post Graduate is allowed to do any private practice or consultation and should not accept any part time employment in any State or Central or Quasi Government or Private organizations during the period of Post Graduation study. The Principal has to take appropriate action after giving opportunity for explanation, if any student violates this rule.
- **12. COLLEGE REGULATIONS:** Candidates are required to follow the rules and regulations of the college and should also abide by the regulations of the University. Under no circumstances they should have any correspondence with the higher authorities directly without routing through proper channel.

#### 13. CLOSURE OF ADMISSIONS:

- 13.1 The admissions shall be closed on the date notified by the DCI, New Delhi.
- 13.2 Any vacancy as on the date (or) after the date of closure of admissions shall not be filled. They will not be carried forward to the next year as per the directions of Supreme Court of India.

#### 14. COMMENCEMENT OF THE COURSE:

The course shall commence as per the schedule notified.

#### 15. DURATION OF COURSE:

The duration of P.G. Diploma courses is 2 years and P.G. Degree courses is 3 years from the date of commencement of the course including University Examinations. In case of students having a recognized two year Post Graduate Diploma course in a subject selected for PG Degree in the same subject, then the period of training including the period of examination, shall be two years. If the break of study is more than three months the candidate has to apply (vide Annexure-VI) to the University through the Principal/Dean of the college. The University can give permission to the candidate to complete the course as per Rules based on evidences produced by the candidate for the break of study.

#### 16. DISSERTATION:

The Post Graduates who are admitted in Degree / Diploma Courses must register the topic of their dissertation with the University within six months of commencement of the course and approval of the University should be obtained.

The dissertation should be submitted within 2 ½ years of commencement of the Course. In case of the candidates who are granted exemption of one year of study period of degree course, the dissertation should be submitted within 1 ½ years of commencement of the course. If the above schedule is not followed the period of Post Graduation will be extended by six months.

- The UGC Notification, dt.23-07-2018 published in the Gazette of India regarding "Promotion of Academic Integrity and Prevention of Plagiarism in Higher Educational Institutions, Regulations 2018" are in force from the academic year 2021-22.
- 17. Paper Presentation/Paper publication should be as per DCI Regulations.

#### 18. MIGRATION AND TRANSFER OF CANDIDATES:

Migration / Transfer / Mutual transfer of Post Graduate students from one Dental college to another Dental College, from one course to another course and from Degree to Diploma and vice versa is not allowed under any circumstances.

#### 19. POWERS OF PRINCIPALS:

Notwithstanding anything contained in these regulations, the Principals of Dental Colleges in the State may at any time before completion of the post graduate course either on their own or on the application of any person after due and proper enquiry and after giving the person two weeks time from the date of the receipt of the show cause notice to submit written explanation and on personal hearing, order, cancellation of admission to the 1<sup>st</sup> year Post Graduate Degree / Diploma course if in the documents attached thereto or in the Statements made either before the authority in charge of admission or the Principals or in any other manner. Against any such order of the Principal, an appeal shall lie with the Registrar, Dr. YSR University of Health Sciences, A.P. Vijayawada.

#### 20. POWERS OF Dr. YSR UNIVERSITY OF HEALTH SCIENCES:

Dr. YSR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada may either suomoto or on an application made to them, call for and examine the records relating to any selection or admission or cancellation thereof in respect of the admission made by the concerned authority, for the purpose of satisfying themselves as to the correctness of legality or propriety of such selection or cancellation and pass such order in relation there to as they deem fit including cancellation of the selection already published or admission already made, provided that the University may, before canceling such selection or admission, give an opportunity to the authority and to the person affected to show cause against such cancellation. Dr.YSR UHS has every right to cancel the admission of any candidate without any notice, if the certificates produced by the candidate are found to be fake/false/forged.

Note: If a candidate is found to have submitted false information such candidate is liable to be disqualified for admission and in case already admitted, the admission will be cancelled. Further disciplinary action against him/her will be initiated by the University as per rules.

#### 21. RAGGING:-

The candidates who join MDS Courses should not indulge in any kind of agitation / strike / ragging activity inside / outside the college campus during the course of study. The candidates if found to take part in any such activities mentioned above will be expelled from the course / college at any part of the course of study and legal proceedings / criminal action will be initiated against them. A copy of the National Medical Commission (Prevention and Prohibition of Ragging in Medical Colleges and Institutions) Regulations, 2021 is also available in University website for information.

22. The candidates applying for MDS Degree Course for the academic year 2024-25 are deemed to have read the contents in the Prospectus and agree with all conditions / clauses and will not have the right to challenge any of the clauses contained in the Prospectus and agree that the same is binding upon them.

### **Instructions to Candidates on Counselling Procedure:**

There will be four Rounds of counselling i.e., Phase 1, Phase 2, Phase 3 (Mop up) and Stray Round.(SUBJECT TO CHANGE AS PER THE GUIDELINES OF DGHS / DCI NORMS & UHS

#### Phase-I counselling:

| 1  | Seat Matrix will be displayed in the University Website for information of the students before exercising their Web options. All the eligible candidates present in the Merit list are eligible to opt for Phase-I  |
|----|---|
| 2  | As per the year 2023-24 Notifications for Stray/Special Stray rounds of CQ/MQ counsellings, candidates who participated in Stray/Special Stray rounds of CQ/MQ counsellings conducted for the year 2023-24 and allotted seats but not reported/joined are debarred for admissions into CQ/MQ counsellings for the year 2024-25 (List of debarred candidates displayed on the University website).   |
| 3  | As per G.O.Ms.No.67. dt.21-04-2017, the candidates who have discontinued the course from the academic year 2021-22 irrespective of their admission batch will be debarred for this academic year i.e., 2024-25(List of debarred candidates displayed on the University website).  |
| 4  | Candidates are informed that, there is no limit of choices (number) for exercising web options. Candidates can exercise any number of options for any number of specialities and colleges available.  |
| 5  | Candidates are instructed to be careful while exercising options on the Web and take the print out of the saved options. Candidates are advised to exercise options in Courses and colleges in which they are genuinely interested. If they are not interested to join any speciality or college then they are advised not exercise options for the same.   |
| 6  | The selected candidates can download the provisional allotment order on payment of University Fee of Rs.23,600/- through payment gateway and report to the Principal of the Allotted College on or before the date specified in the allotment letter. University fee once paid is not refundable under any circumstances.   |
| 7  | The selected candidates shall produce all the Original certificates, pay the Tuition fee, necessary bonds etc., and complete the process of admission. If the candidate does not fulfil the criteria as per regulations to complete the admission process in the specified dates of admission, their admission will be cancelled automatically.   |
| 8  | The verification of original certificates will be conducted at the time of admission in the respective College and in case of any discrepancy, the Provisional allotment will be cancelled and action will be initiated. If the candidate slides to other college (i.e., affiliated colleges of Dr.YSR UHS) during subsequent Phases of counselling the tuition fee will be sent to the slided college by the concerned college where the amount is held. |
| 9  | If a candidate of Phase-I counselling has not joined/reported in the allotted seat then that particular seat shall not be available for that candidate to exercise web options in Phase-II and all further phases of counselling in order to prevent the blocking of seats.   |
| 10 | The Joined candidates of Phase-I Counselling are eligible for upgradation up to Phase-III (Mop Up) round only.  |
| 11 | Candidates who have reported the allotted seat of Phase-I can opt for free exit as per the schedule which will be notified.   |

#### **Phase-II Counselling:**

- 1. Procedure for exercising web options as explained at Phase-I counselling
- 2. Eligibility for Exercising web options in Phase-II Counselling

The following candidates are eligible:

- a) All the candidates who have been allotted a seat in Phase-I and reported.
- b) All the candidates who have not been allotted any seat in Phase-I counselling.
- c) All candidates who have been allotted a seat in Phase-I but not reported/not joined at the allotted colleges. However, if a candidate has not joined/reported in the allotted seat of Phase-I then that particular seat shall not be available for that candidate to exercise web options in Phase-II counselling.
- d) The Joined candidates of Phase-I/Phase-II Counselling are eligible for upgradation up to Phase-III (Mop Up) round only.
- 3. Candidates who have reported the allotted seat of Phase-I and/or Phase-II can opt for free exit as per the schedule which will be notified.

#### Phase-III (Mop Up) Counselling:

- 1. Procedure for exercising web options as explained at Phase-I counselling
- 2. Eligibility for Exercising web options in Phase-III (Mop Up) Counselling

The following candidates are eligible:

- a) All the candidates who have been allotted and reported to the Phase-I/Phase-II seat.
- b) All the candidates who have not been allotted any seat in Phase-I/Phase-II counselling.
- c) All candidates who have been allotted a seat in Phase-I/Phase-II but not reported/not joined at the allotted colleges. However, if a candidate has not joined/reported in the allotted seat of Phase-I/Phase-II then that particular seat shall not be available for that candidate to exercise web options in Phase-III/Mop Up counselling.
- d) The Joined candidates who are holding a seat in Phase-I or Phase-II or Phase-III(Mop Up) Counselling are not eligible for Stray or any further rounds.
- e) If any candidate does not join Phase-III seat cannot participate in further rounds of counselling conducted by State.
- f) MCC of DGHS will share the data of joined candidates in Round 1, Round 2, Round 3 counsellings with all the participating States. Similarly, the participating States will also share the data of joined candidates. Candidates who have joined up to Round 3 of MCC counselling and also the allotted candidates of Stray Vacancy round of MCC counselling will be filtered and weeded out before processing for Stray Vacancy round of counselling of AP State.
- e) As per MCC counselling Scheme 2024, the joined candidates up to Round 3 of MCC counselling cannot upgrade or resign after Round 3. If any candidate is allotted seat in Round 3 of AIQ/Deemed/Central Quota and also allotted a seat in Phase-III/ Mop Up counselling of the AP State, later found that the candidate has joined in Round 3 of AIQ/Deemed/Central Quota, in such cases the seat allotted in Phase-III/ Mop Up counselling of the AP State shall be automatically cancelled at any stage, without any prior notice. Vacancies arising due to such cancellation will be filled up in Stray Vacancy round. Hence, candidates are advised to exercise caution while taking a decision to join in either Round 3 of AIQ or Phase-III (Mop Up) of State Counseling.

#### STRAY VACANCY COUNSELLING:

- 1. Fresh registrations and fresh choice filling for Final Stray Vacancy Round. The choices filled during earlier phases will not be considered for allotment in Stray Vacancy Round. Candidate whose names already present in the Merit list and not holding any seat are also eligible for Stray vacancy provided they satisfy the eligibility conditions of Stray vacancy round and hence they need not apply again for Stray vacancy notification.
  - ➤ The choices filled during Phase-III(Mop Up) will not be considered for allotment in Stray Vacancy Round.

#### 2. Eligible candidates:

- a) The candidates who have not been allotted in Phase 1, Phase 2, Phase 3 of counselling.
- b) The candidates who have been allotted, but not joined in Phase 1, Phase 2 of State Quota and All India Quota are eligible to participate in this counselling.
- c) A Candidate who has not registered and not choice locked in the Phase 1 or Phase 2 or Phase 3(Mop up) ONLINE COUNSELLING will be permitted to attend Stray Round of ONLINE COUNSELLING.

#### Not Eligible Candidates:

- a) The candidates who are holding MDS seat in Round 1, Round 2 and Round 3 (Mop Up) of State Counselling are not eligible to participate in Stray round of counselling.
- b) The candidate who is holding a seat allotted in Round 1 & Round 2 and Round 3 in All India Quota/Deemed universities(conducted by MCC/DGHS).
- c) The candidates who have been allotted in stray round of All India Quota/Deemed universities(conducted by MCC/DGHS) are not eligible to participate in State Stray Round of counselling.
- d) A candidate allotted a seat in Phase 3 (Mop up) of State counselling and not joined the seat cannot participate in further rounds of State Counselling.
- 3. If a candidate is allotted a seat in Stray round, he/she has to report & join the allotted seat/college else he/she **shall be debarred** from participating A.P. State Counselling for admission to PG Dental Courses under both Competent Authority Quota seats & Management Quota seats for subsequent 1 (one) academic year.

#### ANNEXURE - I

The list of PG Dental Colleges affiliated to Dr. YSR UHS along with details of Total Intake, All India Quota (AIQ) seats, Competent Authority Quota (CQ) seats for the academic year 2024-25 is shown below for information. The admissions into the following colleges are subject to the permission given by the Government of India/Dental Council of India (DCI)

Statement Showing Annual Intake in MDS Course for the Academic Year 2024-25

| Туре | Area | College Name  | Course Name   | Total | AIQ | CQ | MQ |
|------|------|---|---|-------|-----|----|----|
| Govt | AU   | GOVERNMENT DENTAL COLLEGE,<br>VIJAYAWADA                            | Master of Dental Surgery in Conservative<br>Dentistry & Endodontics                 | 3     | 1   | 2  | -  |
|      |      |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral Medicine & Radiology                               | 3     | 2   | 1  | -  |
|      |      |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery                            | 3     | 1   | 2  | -  |
|      |      |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral and Maxillofacial Pathology & and Oral Microbilogy | 3     | 2   | 1  | -  |
|      |      |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics                | 3     | 2   | 1  | -  |
|      |      |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Pediatric and Preventive Dentistry                      | 3     | 2   | 1  | -  |
| İ    |      |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Periodontology  | 3     | 1   | 2  | -  |
|      |      |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics and Crown & Bridge                       | 3     | 2   | 1  | -  |
|      |      | GOVERNMENT DENTAL COLLEGE,<br>VIJAYAWADA Total                      |   | 24    | 13  | 11 |    |
|      | SVU  | GOVERNMENT DENTAL COLLEGE<br>AND HOSPITAL, KADAPA                   | Master of Dental Surgery in Conservative Dentistry & Endodontics                    | 3     | 1   | 2  | -  |
|      |      |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral Medicine & Radiology                               | 3     | 1   | 2  | -  |
|      |      |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery                            | 3     | 1   | 2  | -  |
|      |      |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral and Maxillofacial Pathology & and Oral Microbilogy | 3     | 1   | 2  | -  |
|      |      |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics                | 3     | 1   | 2  | -  |
|      |      |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Pediatric and Preventive Dentistry                      | 3     | 1   | 2  | -  |
|      |      |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Periodontology  | 3     | 1   | 2  | -  |
|      |      |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics and Crown & Bridge                       | 2     | 1   | 1  | -  |
|      |      | GOVERNMENT DENTAL COLLEGE<br>AND HOSPITAL, KADAPA Total             |   | 23    | 8   | 15 | -  |
| Pvt  | AU   | ANIL NEERUKONDA INST. OF<br>DENTAL SCIENCES,<br>VISAKHAPATNAM       | Master of Dental Surgery in Conservative<br>Dentistry & Endodontics                 | 6     | -   | 3  | 3  |
|      |      |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral Medicine & Radiology                               | 2     | -   | 1  | 1  |
|      |      |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery                            | 5     | -   | 2  | 3  |
|      |      |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics                | 6     | -   | 3  | 3  |
|      |      |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Pediatric and Preventive Dentistry                      | 5     | -   | 2  | 3  |
|      |      |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Periodontology  | 2     | -   | 1  | 1  |
|      |      |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics and Crown & Bridge                       | 5     | -   | 2  | 3  |
|      |      |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Public Health Dentistry                                 | 3     | -   | 2  | 1  |
|      |      | ANIL NEERUKONDA INST. OF<br>DENTAL SCIENCES,<br>VISAKHAPATNAM Total |   | 34    | -   | 16 | 18 |

| DRS.SUDHA AND NAGESWARA<br>RAO INSTITUTE OF DENTAL  |   |  |   |                                  |                   |
|---|---|--|---|----------------------------------|-------------------|
| SCIENCES, GANNAVARAM  | Master of Dental Surgery in Conservative<br>Dentistry & Endodontics   | 5  | - | 3                                | 2                 |
| - , -   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery  | 5  | - | 3                                | 2                 |
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics  | 5  | - | 3                                | 2                 |
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Pediatric and Preventive Dentistry  | 3  | - | 2                                | 1                 |
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Periodontology  | 5  | - | 3                                | 2                 |
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics  | 5  | _ | 3                                | 2                 |
|   | and Crown & Bridge  |  |   | _                                |                   |
| DRS.SUDHA AND NAGESWARA<br>RAO INSTITUTE OF DENTAL<br>SCIENCES, GANNAVARAM Total  |   | 28   | - | 17                               | 11                |
| GITAM DENTAL COLLEGE,<br>VISAKHAPATNAM  | Master of Dental Surgery in Conservative<br>Dentistry & Endodontics   | 5  | - | 3                                | 2                 |
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral Medicine & Radiology   | 3  | - | 2                                | 1                 |
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery  | 3  | - | 2                                | 1                 |
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral and Maxillofacial Pathology & and Oral Microbilogy   | 3  | - | 2                                | 1                 |
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics  | 5  | - | 3                                | 2                 |
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Pediatric and Preventive Dentistry  | 5  | - | 3                                | 2                 |
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Periodontology  | 5  | - | 3                                | 2                 |
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics and Crown & Bridge   | 5  | - | 3                                | 2                 |
| GITAM DENTAL COLLEGE,<br>VISAKHAPATNAM Total  |   | 34   | - | 21                               | 13                |
| GSL DENTAL COLLEGE HOSPITAL, RAJMAHENDRAVARAM.  | Master of Dental Surgery in Conservative Dentistry & Endodontics  | 3  | - | 2                                | 1                 |
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral Medicine & Radiology   | 2  | - | 1                                | 1                 |
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery  | 3  | - | 2                                | 1                 |
|   | 5 9   |  |   |                                  |                   |
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral and<br>Maxillofacial Pathology & and Oral Microbilogy  | 2  | - | 1                                | 1                 |
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral and  | 3  | - | 1 2                              | 1                 |
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral and Maxillofacial Pathology & and Oral Microbilogy  Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics  Master of Dental Surgery in Pediatric and Preventive Dentistry   | 3  | - |                                  |                   |
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral and Maxillofacial Pathology & and Oral Microbilogy  Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics  Master of Dental Surgery in Pediatric and Preventive Dentistry   | 3  | - | 2                                | 1                 |
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral and Maxillofacial Pathology & and Oral Microbilogy  Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics  Master of Dental Surgery in Pediatric and  | 3  | - | 2                                | 1                 |
| GSL DENTAL COLLEGE HOSPITAL,<br>RAJMAHENDRAVARAM. Total   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral and Maxillofacial Pathology & and Oral Microbilogy  Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics  Master of Dental Surgery in Pediatric and Preventive Dentistry  Master of Dental Surgery in Periodontology  Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics   | 3 3  | - | 2 2                              | 1 1 1             |
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral and Maxillofacial Pathology & and Oral Microbilogy  Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics  Master of Dental Surgery in Pediatric and Preventive Dentistry  Master of Dental Surgery in Periodontology Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics and Crown & Bridge  Master of Dental Surgery in Conservative Dentistry & Endodontics   | 3<br>3<br>2<br>3<br>21<br>3                | - | 2<br>2<br>1<br>2<br>13           | 1 1 1 1 8 2       |
| RAJMAHENDRAVARAM. Total KONASEEMA INSTITUTE OF  | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral and Maxillofacial Pathology & and Oral Microbilogy  Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics  Master of Dental Surgery in Pediatric and Preventive Dentistry  Master of Dental Surgery in Periodontology  Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics and Crown & Bridge  Master of Dental Surgery in Conservative Dentistry & Endodontics  Master of Dental Surgery in Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery  | 3 3 2 3 21                                 | - | 2 2 1 2 13                       | 1 1 1 1 8         |
| RAJMAHENDRAVARAM. Total KONASEEMA INSTITUTE OF  | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral and Maxillofacial Pathology & and Oral Microbilogy  Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics  Master of Dental Surgery in Pediatric and Preventive Dentistry  Master of Dental Surgery in Periodontology  Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics and Crown & Bridge  Master of Dental Surgery in Conservative Dentistry & Endodontics  Master of Dental Surgery in Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery  Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics  | 3<br>3<br>2<br>3<br>21<br>3<br>3           | - | 2<br>2<br>1<br>2<br>13<br>1      | 1 1 1 1 8 2 2 2   |
| RAJMAHENDRAVARAM. Total KONASEEMA INSTITUTE OF  | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral and Maxillofacial Pathology & and Oral Microbilogy  Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics  Master of Dental Surgery in Pediatric and Preventive Dentistry  Master of Dental Surgery in Periodontology  Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics and Crown & Bridge  Master of Dental Surgery in Conservative Dentistry & Endodontics  Master of Dental Surgery in Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery  Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and  | 3<br>3<br>2<br>3<br>21<br>3                | - | 2<br>2<br>1<br>2<br>13           | 1 1 1 1 8 2 2     |
| RAJMAHENDRAVARAM. Total  KONASEEMA INSTITUTE OF DENTAL SCIENCES, AMALAPURAM  KONASEEMA INSTITUTE OF DENTAL SCIENCES, AMALAPURAM Total | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral and Maxillofacial Pathology & and Oral Microbilogy  Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics  Master of Dental Surgery in Pediatric and Preventive Dentistry  Master of Dental Surgery in Periodontology  Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics and Crown & Bridge  Master of Dental Surgery in Conservative Dentistry & Endodontics  Master of Dental Surgery in Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery  Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics  Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics and Crown & Bridge | 3<br>3<br>2<br>3<br>21<br>3<br>3<br>3<br>2 |   | 2<br>2<br>1<br>2<br>13<br>1      | 1 1 1 1 8 2 2 2   |
| RAJMAHENDRAVARAM. Total  KONASEEMA INSTITUTE OF DENTAL SCIENCES, AMALAPURAM  KONASEEMA INSTITUTE OF DENTAL SCIENCES, AMALAPURAM       | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral and Maxillofacial Pathology & and Oral Microbilogy  Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics  Master of Dental Surgery in Pediatric and Preventive Dentistry  Master of Dental Surgery in Periodontology  Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics and Crown & Bridge  Master of Dental Surgery in Conservative Dentistry & Endodontics  Master of Dental Surgery in Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery  Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics  Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics                    | 3<br>3<br>2<br>3<br>21<br>3<br>3<br>2      |   | 2<br>2<br>1<br>2<br>13<br>1<br>1 | 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 1 1 |

| RAJAMAHENDRAVARAM  |  |    |  |   |
|--|--|----|--|---|
|  | Diploma in Orthodontics & Dentofacial Orthopaedics                                     | 1  | -  | 1 |
|  | Diploma in Pedodontics & Preventive Dentistry  | 2  | - 1 - 1 - 3 - 2 - 3 - 3 - 3 - 3 - 2 - 23 - 3 - 3 - 2 - 3 - 2 - 3 - 2 - 24 - 2 - 24 - 2 |   |
|  | Diploma in Prosthodontics & Crown & Bridge   | 1  | -  | 1 |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Conservative Dentistry & Endodontics                       | 5  | -  | 3 |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral Medicine & Radiology                                  | 3  | -  | 2 |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics                   | 5  | -  | 3 |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Pediatric and Preventive Dentistry                         | 5  | -  |   |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Periodontology   | 5  | -  | _ |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics and Crown & Bridge                          | 5  | -  | 3 |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Public Health<br>Dentistry                                 | 3  | -  |   |
| LENORA INSTITUTE OF DENTAL SCIENCES, RAJAMAHENDRAVARAM Total       |  | 37 | -  | 2 |
| SIBAR INSTITUTE OF DENTAL<br>SCIENCES, GUNTUR                      | Master of Dental Surgery in Conservative Dentistry & Endodontics                       | 6  | -  | 3 |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral Medicine & Radiology                                  | 3  | -  | 2 |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery                               | 5  | -  | 3 |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral and<br>Maxillofacial Pathology & and Oral Microbilogy | 3  | -  | 2 |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics                   | 5  | -  | 3 |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Pediatric and Preventive Dentistry                         | 6  | -  | 3 |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Periodontology   | 6  | -  | 3 |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics and Crown & Bridge                          | 6  | -  | 3 |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Public Health<br>Dentistry                                 | 4  | -  |   |
| SIBAR INSTITUTE OF DENTAL SCIENCES, GUNTUR Total                   |  | 44 | -  |   |
| SREE SAI DENTAL COLLEGE<br>RESEARCH INSTITUTE,<br>SRIKAKULAM       | Master of Dental Surgery in Conservative Dentistry & Endodontics                       | 3  | -  | 2 |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics                   | 3  | -  | 2 |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Periodontology   | 3  | -  | 2 |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics and Crown & Bridge                          | 3  | -  | 2 |
| SREE SAI DENTAL COLLEGE<br>RESEARCH INSTITUTE,<br>SRIKAKULAM Total |  | 12 | -  | 8 |
| ST.JOSEPH DENTAL COLLEGE,<br>ELURU                                 | Master of Dental Surgery in Conservative Dentistry & Endodontics                       | 6  | -  | 3 |

|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral Medicine & Radiology                               | 3  | - | 2  | 1  |
|-----|---|---|----|---|----|----|
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery                            | 3  | - | 2  | 1  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral and Maxillofacial Pathology & and Oral Microbilogy | 3  | - | 2  | 1  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics                | 5  | - | 3  | 2  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Pediatric and Preventive Dentistry                      | 5  | - | 3  | 2  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Periodontology  | 3  | - | 2  | 1  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics and Crown & Bridge                       | 3  | - | 2  | 1  |
|     | ST.JOSEPH DENTAL COLLEGE,<br>ELURU Total                              |   | 31 | - | 19 | 12 |
|     | VISHNU DENTAL COLLEGE,<br>BHEEMAVARAM,                                | Master of Dental Surgery in Conservative Dentistry & Endodontics                    | 6  | - | 3  | 3  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral Medicine & Radiology                               | 5  | - | 3  | 2  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery                            | 2  | - | 1  | 1  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral and Maxillofacial Pathology & and Oral Microbilogy | 5  | - | 3  | 2  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics                | 6  | - | 3  | 3  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Pediatric and Preventive Dentistry                      | 6  | - | 3  | 3  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Periodontology  | 5  | - | 3  | 2  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics and Crown & Bridge                       | 6  | - | 3  | 3  |
|     | VISHNU DENTAL COLLEGE,<br>BHEEMAVARAM, Total                          |   | 41 | - | 22 | 19 |
| SVU | CKS TEJA INSTITUTE OF DENTAL SCIENCES RESEARCH, TIRUPATHI             | Master of Dental Surgery in Conservative Dentistry & Endodontics                    | 6  | - | 3  | 3  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral Medicine & Radiology                               | 3  | - | 2  | 1  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery                            | 3  | - | 2  | 1  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral and Maxillofacial Pathology & and Oral Microbilogy | 3  | - | 2  | 1  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics                | 6  | - | 3  | 3  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Pediatric and Preventive Dentistry                      | 3  | - | 2  | 1  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Periodontology  | 2  | - | 1  | 1  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics and Crown & Bridge                       | 6  | - | 3  | 3  |
|     | CKS TEJA INSTITUTE OF DENTAL<br>SCIENCES RESEARCH, TIRUPATHI<br>Total |   | 32 | - | 18 | 14 |

|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Periodontology  Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics and Crown & Bridge | 3  | - | 2  |   |
|---|---|----|---|----|---|
| G. PULLA REDDY DENTAL<br>COLLEGE & HOSPITAL, NANDYAL<br>Total |   | 23 | - | 13 | 1 |
| NARAYANA DENTAL COLLEGE,<br>NELLORE                           | Master of Dental Surgery in Conservative Dentistry & Endodontics  | 5  | - | 3  |   |
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral Medicine & Radiology   | 6  | - | 3  |   |
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery  | 5  | - | 3  |   |
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral and Maxillofacial Pathology & and Oral Microbilogy                       | 3  | - | 2  |   |
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics                                      | 5  | - | 3  |   |
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Pediatric and Preventive Dentistry  | 5  | - | 3  |   |
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Periodontology  | 5  | - | 3  |   |
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics and Crown & Bridge   | 6  | - | 3  |   |
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Public Health Dentistry   | 3  | - | 2  |   |
|   |   | 43 | - | 25 |   |
| NARAYANA DENTAL COLLEGE,<br>NELLORE Total                     |   | 43 | _ | 25 |   |

#### BEWARE OF TOUTS, BROKERS OR MIDDLEMEN

Few persons may approach you saying they have known people in Dr. Y.S.R. University of Health Sciences who guarantee Medical/Dental seats through unfair means during counseling or after counselling. Counseling for all Medical / Dental seats are conducted and allotted as per the existing rules and in the ambit of the State Government as per NEET merit score and prioritized options exercised by the candidate. Hence, candidates and parents should not trust any of such persons. Any information regarding counselling will be placed in the University official website only.

VIJAYAWADA Dt:20.07.2024 Sd/-(Dr.V.RADHIKA REDDY) REGISTRAR

# ANNEXURE - II FORM OF CASTE CERTIFICATE

| Serial No.   |   |
|--|---|
| S.C.<br>S.T.<br>B.C.   | District Code:<br>Mandal Code:<br>Village Code:   |
| Certificate No.  |   |
| COMMUNITY, NATIVITY AND  | DATE OF BIRTH CERTIFICATE   |
| of Sri   | District  |
| The Constitution (Scheduled Castes) order 1950<br>The Constitution (Scheduled Tribes) order 1950 |   |
| G.O.Ms.No.1793, Education, dated 25-9-1970 as (Modification) Order 1956, S.Cs. and S.Ts (Amendr  | amended from time to time (BCs) S.Cs., S.Ts. list ment) Act, 1976:                                    |
| 2) It is certified that Sri/Smt/Kum  | is a native of  |
| 3) It is certified the place of birth of Sri/Smt/Kum<br>Town Mandal                              | is  |
| 4) It is certified that the date of birth of Sri/Smt/K   | um is Day   |
|  | as per the declaration  |
| (Seal)   | Signature: Date: Name in Capital Letters: Designation:  |
| Explanatory Note:  | Designation.  |
|  | ent Authority must mention sub-caste in case of case of Scheduled Tribes) as listed out in the S.Cs., |
| NOTE: Certifying Officer should follow the orders issued   | l in G.O.Ms.No.58, Social Welfare (J) Dept., dt.12-5-97.  |

#### ANNEXURE- III

### **DISCONTINUATION CERTIFICATE**

#### ANNEXURE - IV

### (Non-Judicial Stamped paper for Rs. 100/-) (FOR ALL CANDIDATES)

| I, Dr  | selected for Post                         |
|--|---|
| Graduate Dental Degree/Diploma for the year 2024-2     | 5 do hereby undertake to complete the     |
| said course as per the requirements of the University. | . In the event of my leaving the studies  |
| after joining the course, I undertake to pay to the Da | r. YSR University of Health Sciences a    |
| sum of ₹.3,00,000/- + 18% GST and refund the amour     | at received as stipend up to that date to |
| Government.  |   |
|  |   |
| DATE:  | Signature of the Candidate                |
| Witness:   |   |
| 1. Signature :   |   |
| Name and address in full                               |   |
|  |   |
| 2.Signature:   |   |
| Name and address in full                               |   |

# ANNEXURE - V DECLARATION

|       | I      | ••••                                    | • • • • • • • • | • |            | •      | Son     | of/Da       | aughter      | of   |
|-------|--------|---|-----------------|---|------------|--------|---------|-------------|--------------|------|
|       |        | • | • • • • • • • • | Residing at                             |            |        |         | aı          | nd admitted  | 1 to |
| in    | I      | year                                    | of              |   | (Name      | of     | the     | course      | UG/PG)       | at   |
| ••••  |        | • | • • • • • • • • |   | (Nam       | e of t | the Col | llege) do h | ereby solen  | ınly |
| affii | m aı   | nd since                                | erely s         | state as follows:                       |            |        |         |             |              |      |
|       |        |   |                 |   |            |        |         |             |              |      |
| I de  | clare  | that I                                  | shall           | abide by the rule                       | es and re  | gulati | ons pr  | escribed b  | y the Dr. `  | YSR  |
| Uni   | versi  | ty of H                                 | ealth           | Sciences, Vijayawa                      | ada for t  | ne     |         | (co         | urse) includ | ling |
| regu  | ılatio | ns for r                                | e-rea           | dmission after the                      | break of s | study. |         |             |              |      |
|       |        |   |                 |   |            |        |         |             |              |      |
|       |        |   |                 |   |            |        |         |             |              |      |
| Dat   | e:     |   |                 |   |            | S      | Signatı | are of cano | lidate       |      |
|       |        |   |                 |   |            |        |         |             |              |      |
|       |        |   |                 | / Cou                                   | ntersigne  | d /    |         |             |              |      |
|       |        |   |                 |   |            |        |         |             |              |      |
|       |        |   |                 |   |            |        |         |             |              |      |

Dean / Principal / Director (Office date with seal)

#### ANNEXURE - VI

### PROFORMA FOR RE-ADMISSION 1. Name of the student 2. Name of the course and period of study 3. Name of the College 4. Date of joining the course 5. Duration of break of study To: From: 6. Details of examinations appeared & Subjects passed 7. Reasons for the period of break of study of the course (Evidence should be produced) 8. The details of previous break of study (Enclose Xerox copy of the permission Order of the University, if any) 9. Whether any disciplinary case is pending 10. Whether the candidate has registered with this University, if so furnish the Regn. No. 11. Whether the candidate has paid the DD.No: Prescribed fee for readmission sought Date: For (Furnish the details) Bank: (Processing fee: Rs. 2000/-Amount Paid Rs. Re admission/break of study fee: Rs. 5000/-, (The fee has to be paid in favour of the Registrar, Dr. YSR UHS payable at Vijayawada) Signature of the candidate 12. Previous Correspondence if any made (Furnish copies of relevant records) 13. Recommendation of the Dean/Principal/

Certified that the details furnished above in respect of the candidate are verified and found to be correct.

Signature of the Dean/Principal/Director With seal

Director concerned.

# <u>CERTIFICATE IN SUPPORT OF NON-LOCAL STATUS</u> (STUDENT RESIDENCE PROOF)

(A) Certificate to be furnished when the candidate has resided in the state for a period of 10 years.

| This is t | to certify that Mr./Ku | m                              |   | Son/Daughter of           |
|-----------|------------------------|--------------------------------|---|---------------------------|
| Sri./Smt. |                        |                                | a candida                                 | te seeking admission into |
| professio | nal courses (Medica    | l, Dental courses) through NEE | T for the Academic year                   | 2024-25 is a resident of  |
|           | (Place) in             | (District) of Andh             | ra Pradesh for a total per                | iod of 10 years from the  |
| year      | to                     | excluding the periods of stud  | ly outside the state, detail              | led as follows:-          |
| Sl.No.    | Period                 | Village                        | Mandal                                    | District                  |
| 1.        |                        |                                |   |                           |
| 2.        |                        |                                |   |                           |
| 3.        |                        |                                |   |                           |
| 4.        |                        |                                |   |                           |
| 5.        |                        |                                |   |                           |
| 6.        |                        |                                |   |                           |
| 7.        |                        |                                |   |                           |
| 8.        |                        |                                |   |                           |
| 9.        |                        |                                |   |                           |
| 10.       |                        |                                |   |                           |
|           |                        |                                |   |                           |
| Place:    |                        |                                |   |                           |
| Date:     |                        |                                | Signature of the                          | ·                         |
| Office Se | eal:                   |                                | Authority from R (Not below the rank of T | •                         |

### ANNEXURE-VIII

### CERTIFICATE IN SUPPORT OF NON-LOCAL STATUS

### (PARENT RESIDENCE PROOF)

| (B) Certific<br>10 year |                     | when either of the parents of t | he candidate has resided in t                    | he state for a period of |
|-------------------------|---------------------|---------------------------------|--|--------------------------|
| This is                 | to certify that Sr  | i/Smt                           |  | Father /                 |
| Mother                  | of                  |                                 |  | , a                      |
| candidate               | e seeking admission | n into professional courses (   | (Medical, Dental courses)                        | through NEET for the     |
| academic                | year 2024-25, is a  | resident of                     | (Place) i  | n                        |
| (District)              | of Andhra Prade     | sh for a total period of 1      | 10 years from the year                           | to                       |
|                         | excluding the p     | eriod of employment outside     | e the State.                                     |                          |
| Sl.No.                  | Period              | Village                         | Mandal   | District                 |
| 1.                      |                     |                                 |  |                          |
| 2.                      |                     |                                 |  |                          |
| 3.                      |                     |                                 |  |                          |
| 4.                      |                     |                                 |  |                          |
| 5.                      |                     |                                 |  |                          |
| 6.                      |                     |                                 |  |                          |
| 7.                      |                     |                                 |  |                          |
| 8.<br>9.                |                     |                                 |  |                          |
| 10.                     |                     |                                 |  |                          |
| 10.                     |                     |                                 |  |                          |
| Place:<br>Date:         |                     |                                 | Signature of the Co                              | ompetent                 |
| Office Sea              | l:                  |                                 | Authority from Rev<br>(Not below the rank of Tah | ·                        |

# ANNEXURE - IX CERTIFICATE IN SUPPORT OF NON-LOCAL STATUS

### (PARENT CURRENT EMPLOYMENT PROOF IN ANDHRA PRADESH

**(C)** Certificate to be furnished when the parent / spouse is an employee of the State of Central Government or Quasi-Government Organization and presently working within State of AP.

| This is to certify that        | at Sri/Smt Father /   |
|--------------------------------|---|
| Mother of                      | , a   |
| candidate seeking admission    | in to professional courses (Medical, Dental courses) through NEET for the |
| academic year 2024-25, i       | s presently employed in Andhra Pradesh State in the Organization          |
| from                           | _ till to date. The Organization is a State / Central / Quasi Government  |
| Organization in the State of A | Andhra Pradesh.   |
| Place:<br>Date:                | Signature of the Competent  |
| Office Seal:                   | Competent Authority. (Employer)   |

#### FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS (FAQs)

# Q. No. 1: When will PG(Dental) Allotments start for State Quota (also called Competent Authority Quota) seats?

**Ans:** The schedule will be as per MCC/DCI, New Delhi guidelines and you have to visit University Website regularly for updates.

# Q. No. 2: Is a candidate required to report to any center for online Registration and Web options?

**Ans**: The entire process is online only. Not required to report at any center for Registration and Web options.

# Q.No.3. Is one online application sufficient for both Competent Authority Quota(CQ) and Management Quota(MQ) seats?

Ans: Separate applications are required to be submitted for CQ and MQ seats. Visit University website for CQ and MQ Notifications.

#### Q.No.4: What is the cut-off date of Internship?

Ans: 30<sup>th</sup> June-2024 is the cut-off date for Internship.

# Q. No. 5: What is the mode of reporting at the allotted college. Do I have to report personally at the allotted College?

Ans: The allotted candidate has to download the allotment letter by paying Rs.23,600/- through online mode. Candidates who are allotted seats should physically report at the allotted colleges along with all **Original Certificates**, allotment letter and **Provisional Verification Form** on or before the last date mentioned in the Allotment letter.

### Q.No.6: What is the process of Web options?

Ans: A candidate has to opt for the interested specialties and colleges before commencement of each phase of counselling as and when the Notification is released by Dr.YSR UHS, Vijayawada.

#### Q. No. 7: Is there any restriction for filling the number of web options?.

**Ans:** One candidate can give any number of web options. However, the candidates are advised to exercise web options for the course in which they are genuinely interested to join.

# Q. No.8: Is it necessary to join in allotted seat of Phase-I or Phase-II to get chance to participate in Phase-II or Phase-III?

Ans: If a candidate does not report at the allotted institute in Phase-I and/or Phase-II, this will be considered as 'Free Exit' (this facility is available only in Phase-I & Phase II). Candidates who have not joined the Phase-I and/or Phase-II allotted seat may participate again in Phase-II and/or Phase-III.

However, if satisfied with the seat allotted in Phase-I and/or Phase-II, it is not required to participate in further rounds. Rules on Exit option will be issued in detail in the Notification. Candidates shall go through the Notification carefully.

### Q. No. 9: Will I get any personal intimation regarding schedules and allotments?

Ans: No. The candidates have to visit University website regularly for notifications/schedules.

#### Q. No. 10: Can I modify my web options during the choice submission for counseling?

Ans: Yes, you can modify, add or delete your web options before you submit your web options. However, once web options are submitted, they cannot be modified later under any circumstances.

# Q. No. 11: I have not submitted my web options before the time specified in counseling schedule, what will happen to my web options?

Ans: The web options already saved by you will be considered automatically and the web options cannot be altered/modified/changed.

# Q.No.12: Who are eligible for exercising web options in Phase-III & Phase-III(Mop Up) Ans:

- a) Candidates who participated in Phase-I and/or Phase-II, but did not allotted seat in the Phase-I and/or Phase-II.
- b) Candidates who have reported/joined in the allotted seat of Phase-I and/or Phase II
- c) Candidates who have not reported/joined in the allotted seat of Phase-I and/or Phase II
- d) A candidate allotted seat in Phase III (Mop up) of State Counselling and not joined the seat is not eligible to participate in the further rounds of counselling conducted by the State.

# Q. No. 13: If sufficient number of qualified PwBD candidates are not available then, what will happen to those un-allotted PG seats, reserved for PwBD candidates?

Ans: The un-allotted PG seats earmarked for PwBD will be reverted/converted to respective categories of same area as PwBD reservations are Horizontal reservations only.

Ex: 
$$BC-A - PwBD (G) to$$
 -  $BC-A (G)$   
SC -  $PwBD (F) to$  -  $SC (F)$ 

#### Q.No.14: What are Vertical and Horizontal reservations?

Ans: VERTICAL RESERVATIONS:

| Sl.No | Category type | % of Reservation |
|-------|---------------|------------------|
| 1.    | BC-A          | 7                |
| 2.    | BC-B          | 10               |
| 3.    | BC-C          | 1                |
| 4.    | BC-D          | 7                |
| 5.    | ВС-Е          | 4                |
| 6.    | SC            | 15               |
| 7.    | ST            | 6                |

#### **HORIZONTAL RESERVATIONS:**

| Sl.No. | Details | % of Reservation |
|--------|---------|------------------|
| 1.     | PwBD    | 5                |

#### Q.No.15: What is MRC (Explain with example)?

Ans: Meritorious Reserved Candidate-MRC

#### **Example:**

- a) In a particular college MDS(Conservative Dentistry) seat is under "Open Category" in the seat matrix and a SC candidate is allotted that Open Category MD(Conservative Dentistry) seat in Open Round Counselling of Phase-I as per his/her web options and NEET -MDS Rank merit order of the candidate. Now this candidate is shown as **Meritorious Reserved Candidate** (MRC).
- b) The same SC candidate has slided to MD (Prostho) SC category seat in the same college or another college during the Category Round of Phase-I Counselling **conducted on the same day**, then that MD(Conservative Dentistry) seat vacated by this MRC candidate shall be filled with the SC candidates only by merit amongst them.
- c) This type of MRC concept is to be followed for all BC/SC/ST categories in order to maintain 50:50 ratio of Open: Category Reservation
- d) G.Os governing MRC and other regulations:
  - 1. G.O.Ms. No.89, HM & FW (E1) Dept., dt. 21-05-2014
  - 2. G.O.Ms.No.58, HM&FW (C1) Dept., dt.29-05-2020
  - 3. G.O.Ms.No.136, HM&FW (E1) Dept., dt.12-10-2021

# Q.No.16: Who are eligible/not eligible for Stray Vacancy Round if conducted as per MCC, New Delhi Schedule?

Ans:

#### Eligible candidates:

- a) The candidates who have not been allotted in Phase 1, Phase 2, Phase 3 of counselling.
- b) The candidates who have been allotted, but not joined in Phase 1, Phase 2 of State Quota and All India Quota are eligible to participate in this counselling.
- c) A Candidate who has not registered and not choice locked in the Phase 1 or Phase 2 or Phase 3(Mop up) ONLINE COUNSELLING will be permitted to attend Stray Round of ONLINE COUNSELLING

#### Not Eligible Candidates:

- a) The candidates who are holding MDS seat in Round 1, Round 2 and Round 3 (Mop Up) of State Counselling are not eligible to participate in Stray round of counselling.
- b) The candidate who is holding a seat allotted in Round 1 & Round 2 and Round 3 in All India Quota/Deemed universities(conducted by MCC/DGHS).
- c) The candidates who have been allotted in stray round of All India Quota/Deemed universities(conducted by MCC/DGHS) are not eligible to participate in State Stray Round of counselling.
- d) A candidate allotted a seat in Phase 3 (Mop up) of State counselling and not joined the seat cannot participate in further rounds of State Counselling.



## Dr. Y.S.R. UNIVERSITY OF HEALTH SCIENCES,



### ANDHRA PRADESH, VIJAYAWADA - 520 008

## **PROSPECTUS**

## **MANAGEMENT QUOTA**

ADMISSIONS INTO PG DENTAL DEGREE/DIPLOMA COURSES IN PRIVATE UN-AIDED NON-MINORITY DENTAL COLLEGES UNDER MANAGEMENT QUOTA IN THE STATE OF ANDHRA PRADESH FOR THE ACADEMIC YEAR 2024-25



**Official Website** 

For Notifications, Notices Online Application, Counselling etc.,

https://drysr.uhsap.in

Schedule of availability of online Application form

09.00 PM On 20.07.2024 to 09.00 PM On 24.07.2024

- i. Online portal for applying admission to MDS course will be available during the above period as per server time (Refer User Manual displayed on the website).
- ii. Candidates are advised to ensure that the online application submitted is complete in all aspects
- iii. Change of particulars, additions/deletions in the online Application shall not be entertained under any circumstances after submission and on display of Final Merit List.
- iv. Incomplete online applications will NOT be accepted.
- v. Candidate is advised to submit only one Online Application.
- vi. Candidates should ensure that all information entered in the online application are true and correct. The University reserves its right to amend the prospectus and make any modification in this prospectus during any phase of counselling process and to implement/ adhere to any modification of DGHS/ MCC time to time

#### Dr.YSR UNIVERSITY OF HEALTH SCIENCES::AP::VIJAYAWADA-08

ADMISSIONS INTO POST GRADUATE DENTAL MANAGEMENT QUOTA SEATS IN PRIVATE DENTAL COLLEGES IN THE STATE OF ANDHRA PRADESH FOR THE ACADEMIC YEAR 2024-25

|    | IMPORTANT DATES TO REMEMBER   |  |  |  |  |
|----|---|--|--|--|--|
| 1. | Date of issue of Notification                                       | 20-07-2024   |  |  |  |
| 2. | Availability of online Application forms                            | 09.00 PM On 20.07.2024<br>to<br>09.00 PM On 24.07.2024     |  |  |  |
| 3. | Commencement of classes   | Candidates are informed to visit                           |  |  |  |
| 4. | Date of release of provisional merit list of the applied candidates | Dr.YSR UHS official website regularly for Schedules/latest |  |  |  |
| 5. | Date of release of Final Merit position                             | updates/ allotments/ Notices/News & Events                 |  |  |  |
| 6. | Dates of exercising web options                                     | pertaining to counsellings.                                |  |  |  |
| 7. | Closure of admissions   | https://drysr.uhsap.in                                     |  |  |  |

- Note A: 1 Entire Application process is through online mode only, including uploading of Images, scanned copies of Certificates/documents and payment of fees etc., Therefore, candidates are not required to send printout of application form/verification form etc., to the University. No offline applications will be accepted.
  - 2 All further notifications will be displayed on University website only. **No Individual intimations will be sent.** Please visit the University website <a href="https://drysr.uhsap.in">https://drysr.uhsap.in</a> regularly for subsequent notifications / instructions till the closure of admissions.
  - **3** Printout of application form, Provisional Verification form along with Original Certificates should be submitted at the time of admission in the allotted college.

| 1. | For clarifications on<br>Regulations  | 8978780501, 7997710168 |                          |
|----|---------------------------------------|------------------------|--------------------------|
| 2. | For Technical difficulties            | 9000780707             | 10.00 AM to 6.00 PM only |
| 3. | For clarifications on payment gateway | 9000780707             |                          |

Note B: 1. All the dates are tentative and the University reserves the right to change them without assigning any reason or advance notice.

2. Mere submission of application does not confer any right for a seat.

|        | CONTENTS  |          |
|--------|---|----------|
| Sl.No. | PARTICULARS   | PAGE NO. |
| 1      | REGULATIONS   | 5        |
| 2      | NUMBER OF SEATS UNDER MANAGEMENT QUOTA                            | 5        |
| 3      | ELIGIBILITY   | 6        |
| 4      | LOCAL AREA  | 7        |
| 5      | SENIOR RESIDENCY  | 7        |
| 6      | APPLICATIONS THROUGH ONLINE                                       | 8        |
| 7      | PROCEDURE OF FILLING ONLINE APPLICATION FORM                      | 9        |
| 8      | CERTIFICATES REQUIRED BEFORE FILLING THE APPLICATION FORM ON-LINE | 10       |
| 9      | FEE STRUCTURE, REGISTRATION & PROCESSING FEE                      | 11       |
| 10     | ADMISSION RULES   | 12       |
| 11     | ATTENDANCE  | 12       |
| 12     | LEAVE   | 12       |
| 13     | MATERNITY LEAVE   | 12       |
| 14     | BREAK OF STUDY AND RE-ADMISSION                                   | 13       |
| 15     | PRIVATE PRACTICE  | 13       |
| 16     | COLLEGE REGULATIONS   | 13       |
| 17     | CLOSURE OF ADMISSIONS   | 13       |
| 18     | COMMENCEMENT OF THE COURSE  | 13       |
| 19     | DURATION OF COURSE  | 13       |
| 20     | DISSERTATION  | 14       |
| 21     | MIGRATION AND TRANSFER OF CANDIDATES                              | 14       |
| 22     | POWERS OF PRINCIPALS  | 14       |
| 23     | POWERS OF DR. YSR UHS   | 14       |
| 24     | ANTI RAGGING ACT  | 15       |
| 25     | INSTRUCTIONS TO CANDIDATES ON COUNSELLING PROCEDURE               | 16-18    |
| 26     | ANNEXURE – I  | 19-23    |
| 27     | ANNEXURE – II (AFFIDAVIT)   | 24       |
| 28     | ANNEURE – III (Sponsorship Certificate)                           | 25       |
| 29     | ANNEXURE – IV (Discontinuation)                                   | 26       |
| 30     | ANNEXURE – V (Re-admission/Break of Study)                        | 27       |
| 31     | ANNEXURE – VI (Re-admission/Break of Study)                       | 28       |

## Dr. YSR UNIVERSITY OF HEALTH SCIENCES: ANDHRA PRADESH VIJAYAWADA - 520 008

#### 1. Regulations:

The following are the Regulations for admission into **Management Quota seats** in Post Graduate Dental Degree/Diploma Courses in all the Private Dental Colleges affiliated to Dr.YSR UHS.

#### 2. Number of seats under Management quota:

- The number of seats available for the academic year 2024-25 in Post Graduate Dental Degree/Diploma Courses in Private Un-aided Non-Minority Dental colleges will be in accordance with the orders of the DCI/GOI/Govt. of AP.
- The Seat Matrix for Management Quota seats will be displayed on the University Website (<a href="https://drysr.uhsap.in">https://drysr.uhsap.in</a>) before notification for web options
- Seat Matrix shall be prepared as per the following G.Os;
  - 1. G.O.Ms.No.70, dt.03-05-2017 as amended in G.O.Ms.No.57, dt.28-04-2023 of the Govt. of Andhra Pradesh (for Non-Minority Medical Colleges only)
  - i. Management Quota- Subcategory 1. -- 25% of the sanctioned intake of seats, course wise, in each of member institutions shall be filled by the candidates based on the NEET MDS-2024 ranking.

#### As per G.O.Ms.No.102, HM&FW (C1) Dept., dated 15-07-2023,

- ▶ 15% of Subcategory-1 seats only are open to the candidates from all over the Country.
- ➤ For the Remaining 85% of Subcategory-1 seats only Local Candidates of Andhra Pradesh i.e., AU/SVU are only eligible.
  - ii. Management Quota- Subcategory 2:-- 15% seats out of total intake capacity, course wise, in each member institution shall be filled by foreign students/NRI/NRI sponsored candidates on the basis of inter se merit among the applicants qualified in NEET MDS-2024.
- iii. Management Quota- Subcategory 3:-- 10% seats out of total intake capacity, course wise, in each member institution shall be Institutional preference/In-service management quota seats filled on the basis of inter se merit among the applicants qualified in NEET MDS-2024.

iv. In case of fraction of 0.5 between Management Quota Subcategory-1 (S1) and Management Quota Subcategory-2 (S2), the fraction is to be rounded up to the figure and shall be rotated between Subcategory-1 and Subcategory-2 seats in the alternate years starting from the academic year 2023-24 i.e., for the academic year 2023-24, if the seat is due to fraction of 0.5 shall be meant for Management Quota Subcategory-1 and in the next academic year 2024-25 the same seat due to fraction of 0.5 shall be meant for Management Quota Subcategory-2 by rotation and so on as per G.O.Ms.No.57, HM&FW (C1) Dept., dt.28-04-2023 of the Govt. of Andhra Pradesh.

## 3. Eligibility:

- The candidates who fulfil the following criteria are eligible for admission into Post Graduate Dental Degree/Diploma courses and they have to fulfil the Regulations as per NMC/DCI.
- The candidates should secure the following cut-off scores in NEET MDS -2024 conducted by National Board of Examinations, New Delhi as per section (10) of Indian Medical Council Act, 1956.

## For PG (Dental) Courses:

| Name of category                              | Eligibility Criteria<br>as per NBE, New<br>Delhi | Cut-off score<br>(Out of 960) |
|---|--|-------------------------------|
| General category                              | 50 <sup>th</sup> Percentile                      | 263                           |
| SC/ST/BC/OBC (Including PwBD of SC/ST/BC/OBC) | 40 <sup>th</sup> Percentile                      | 230                           |
| General-PwBD                                  | 45 <sup>th</sup> Percentile                      | 246                           |

- i. Lower percentage/percentile of marks for SC/ST/BC/OBC/PwBD is only for eligibility purpose and will not be applicable for reservations as there are no reservation quotas for these categories as per G.O.Ms.No.70, HM&FW (C1) Dept., dated 03-05-2017 as amended in G.O.Ms.No57, dt.28-04-2023, HM & FW (C1) Dept., of Govt. of A.P
- ii. Candidates who got registered as Persons of Indian Origin (PIO) / Overseas Citizen of India (OCI) Cardholders on or after 04.03.2021 are eligible for admission only against any Non-Resident Indian seat or any supernumerary seat; and shall not be eligible for admission against any seat reserved exclusively for Indian Citizens.
- iii. As per NMC Letter No.N-P018(20)/5/2023-PGMEB-NMC/044351, dt.24-07-2023 all the State Counselling agencies shall make necessary arrangements for conducting the counselling in Online mode, for all the rounds including Stray vacancy round in Private Medical Colleges, from the academic year 2023-24. No, College/Institute should conduct the counselling, including the Stray vacancy round, in physical mode.

#### Management Quota Seats shall be as per

G.O.Ms.No.70, HM&FW (C1) Dept., Dt: 03-05-2017 as amended in G.O.Ms.No.75, HM&FW (C1) Dept., dated 06-05-2017, G.O.Ms.No.57, HM&FW (C1) Dept., dated 28-04-2023 and G.O.Ms.No.102, HM&FW (C1) Dept., dated 15-07-2023 in case of Non-Minority Medical Colleges

#### Eligibility for Management Quota seats in Non-Minority Dental Colleges:

Sub Category-1 (S1):-

- ➤ 15% of Subcategory-1 seats only are open to the candidates from all over the Country.
- For the Remaining 85% of Subcategory-1 seats only Local Candidates of Andhra Pradesh i.e., AU/SVU are only eligible.

#### 4. Local Area:

- The entire state of Andhra Pradesh shall be treated as two local areas for the purpose
  of admissions into Post Graduate Courses in Dental Colleges" i.e., Andhra University
  and Sri Venkateswara University areas for filling up the 85% of Sub category-1 (S1) seats in private un-aided Non-minority Dental Colleges in the State of Andhra
  Pradesh.
- For the candidates who were admitted before 2024-25 and have completed BDS from Govt. Dental College, Vijayawada/Govt. Dental College, Hyderabad.

The Local area of the candidate shall be decided by considering the maximum study period of 4 years out of 7 years of study from 6<sup>th</sup> class to Intermediate/10+2 in the State of Andhra Pradesh.

- Foreign Students/NRI/NRI sponsored candidates are eligible for Category C (NRI Quota
   Sub Category-S2)
- Candidates sponsored by the Managements of Private Dental Colleges having Post Graduate Courses in Andhra Pradesh State are eligible for Category C (Institutional Quota Sub Category-S3) in the college which sponsored his/her candidature. The requirements for the Institutional Quota are:
- 1. The candidates who have completed BDS in that particular Institution.
- 2. Employee of that particular Institution and the employee should have a minimum of 6 months experience in that particular Institution and presently working as on the date of application in the same Institution.
- 3. Son or Daughter of the employee working in that institution.
- 4. If the number of candidates sponsored for S3 seat is more than the number of S3 seats available in that college in that speciality, then the seat will be allotted to meritorious candidate in the merit list based on NEET-2024 Rank.

- Candidates should have BDS Degree recognized by the DCI.
- Candidates should have completed Internship by 30-06-2024.
- Must have registered with Dental Council.

Note: If a candidate is found to have submitted false information or concealed any relevant information such candidate is liable to be disqualified for admission and in case already admitted, the admission will be cancelled. Further disciplinary action against him/her will be taken by the University/respective institution. Legal issues if any shall be under the High Court of Judicature for the State of Andhra Pradesh.

- If the candidate is having a Medical qualification equivalent to BDS (Primary Dental qualification) from outside India, the Degree should have been recognized by DCI for enrolment as Dental Practitioner in the India.
- Candidate must have Permanent Registration with Dental Council of India or any State Dental Council.
- Candidates must pay equivalency verification fee as specified in the regulations along with the registration fee. **The fee once paid will not be refunded or adjusted to a future date**. Therefore, candidates are advised to check eligibility conditions thoroughly before applying for determining merit.

**Senior Residency:** All the candidates admitted into Management quota seats in unaided private Dental colleges, on completion of their Postgraduate course shall work for one year as 'Senior Resident' in the institution where they pursued postgraduate course. "

#### 5. Applications through Online:

The On-line Application Form (Single Application Form) for determining Merit Position in respective categories - Category - B (S1) & Category-C- NRI (S2)/ Institutional Quota(S3) will be available on the website:

#### from 09.00 PM on 20-07-2024 to 09.00 PM on 24-07-2024

**Note:** The candidates are advised to take a print out of the Prospectus to fill the application form from the website <a href="http://drysr.uhsap.in">http://drysr.uhsap.in</a> before proceeding to fill the application form.

- The candidate should fill the online application form available on the Website with the data required-for through internet.
- The candidate is advised to fill the Online Application Form after going through the prospectus by keeping all the Certificates ready to enter his/her correct data.
- Candidates opting for S2(NRI Quota) and S3(Institutional Quota) are advised to
  do so at initial stage of submitting online application. Once application is
  submitted and the final merit list is displayed no more changes in the particulars
  of the application will be entertained at any stages of Counselling under any
  circumstances.

#### 6. Procedure of filling online application and Procedure for online payment:

1. Read the Notification, Prospectus carefully.

Keep all the following ready:

- (a) Latest passport size photo
- (b) Admit card and Score Card NEET-MDS 2024.
- (c) Original Degree/Provisional Certificate of BDS
- (d) 6th to Inter/10+2 study certificates for the candidates who have completed BDS from Govt. Dental College, Vijayawada/Govt. Dental College, Hyderabad
- (e) Aadhar Card
- (f) Study Certificate(s) BDS
- (g) Latest Social Status certificate in case of OBC/BC/SC/ST candidates
- (h) Muslim Minority Certificate if applicable (No Muslim Minority dental colleges in PG Dental Courses).
- (i) Internship completion certificate
- 2. (j) Valid Dental Council Registration Certificate.
  - (k) Permanent Dental Registration Certificate is mandatory if the candidate has obtained Degree Certificate from outside the country.

Candidates claiming NRI Quota Should submit the following documents:

- 1. Affidavit from the Sponsorer that he/she will sponsor the candidate (Sub-Category-2 Annexure-II)
- Other proof of documents to be submitted such as Green Card/Citizenship Card/Bank Statements/Pass-port issued by the respective Country/Electricity Bill/Gas Bill /Water Bill (Visa/Driving license are not accepted)
- (l) Sponsorship Certificate from College for claiming Institutional Quota (S3)
  - -ANNEXURE III
    - 1. The candidates who have studied in that institution.
    - 2. Son or Daughter of the employee working in that institution.
    - 3. Employee of that Institution.
    - 4. If the number of candidates sponsored for S3 seat is more than the number of S3 seats available in that college in that speciality, then the seat will be allotted to meritorious candidate in the merit list based on NEET-2024 Rank.
- 3. The fee can be paid through Debit card / Credit card or Net Banking.

The fee paid by the applicants is not refundable and will not be adjusted to a future date under any circumstances.

## List of Documents to be uploaded at the time of Online Registration

| S1.<br>No | Details of Certificate  | File<br>Type      | Size of file |
|-----------|---|-------------------|--------------|
| 1.        | NEET-2024 – SCORE CARD. (Mandatory)   | pdf               | 500 KB       |
| 2.        | Copy of Original Degree/Provisional certificate of BDS (Mandatory)  | pdf               | 500 KB       |
| 3.        | Copy of BDS study certificate (Mandatory)   | pdf               | 500 KB       |
| 4.        | Copy of the Compulsory Rotatory Internship certificate.  (Mandatory)  | pdf               | 500 KB       |
| 5.        | 6th to Inter/10+2 study certificates for the candidates who have completed BDS from Govt. Dental College, Vijayawada/Govt. Dental College, Hyderabad  | pdf               | 500 KB       |
| 6.        | BDS transfer certificate/Migration Certificate (Mandatory)  | PDF               | 500 KB       |
| 7.        | Local status Certificate issued by MRO of AP (candidates migrated from Telangana to Andhra Pradesh (If Applicable)  | PDF               | 500 KB       |
| 8.        | PIO/OCI Certificate (if applicable)   | PDF               | 500 KB       |
| 9.        | Other PG Degree Certificate (if applicable)   | PDF               | 500 KB       |
| 10.       | Copies of Temporary/Permanent Dental Registration from the respective State Dental Council (Mandatory)  | pdf               | 500 KB       |
| 11.       | <ol> <li>NRI Sponsorship Letter (Sub-Category-2 as per the Annexure-II).</li> <li>Affidavit from the Sponsorer that he/she will sponsor the candidate (Annexure-III)</li> <li>Proof of documents to be submitted:</li> <li>Declaration (given at Annexure-II in the Prospectus) on signed by both the candidate and NRI along with evidential documents such as Green Card/Citizenship Card/Bank Statements/Passport issued by the respective Country/Electricity Bill/Gas Bill/Water Bill (Visa/Driving license are not accepted)</li> </ol> | pdf               | 1000 KB      |
| 12.       | Sponsorship Letter from Institute/College for claiming Institutional Quota-S3 (Annexure-IV)   | pdf               | 500 KB       |
| 13.       | Caste Category Certificate  | pdf               | 500 KB       |
| 14.       | Minority Certificate (No Muslim Minority dental colleges in PG Dental Courses).   | pdf               | 500 KB       |
| 15.       | Aadhar Card, PAN Card etc., (Mandatory)   | pdf               | 500 KB       |
| 16.       | Candidate's latest passport size Photo (Mandatory)  | jpg<br>OR<br>jpeg | 100 KB       |
| 17.       | Specimen Signature of the Candidate (Mandatory)   | jpg<br>OR<br>jpeg | 100 KB       |

#### 7. FEE PARTICULARS FOR ON-LINE REGISTRATION:

#### 1. The Registration & Processing fee including 18% GST:

For candidates completed their BDS Degree from Dr.YSR UHS, Vijayawada/GIMSR,

Vizag - ₹.7,080/- (Rupees Seven thousand and eighty only)

(Registration fee ₹. 3,500/- + 18% GST & Processing fee ₹.2,500/- + 18% GST).

#### 2. The Registration fee, Processing fee & Equivalency fee including 18% GST:

For candidates studied outside the Andhra Pradesh State and Abroad

- a. The candidates who acquired their BDS Degree outside the AP State shall pay ₹.10,620/- (i.e., ₹.3,500/- +2500/- +3000/- and 18% GST)
- b. The candidates who acquired their BDS Degree Abroad/Foreign Country shall pay ₹.15,340/- (i.e., ₹.3,500/- +2500/- +7000/- and 18% GST)

#### 8. Merit Lists:

- The Merit Position of the candidates those who have applied through online in response to the notification issued by Dr.YSR University of Health Sciences for Management Quota Seats shall be determined by **NEET-MDS-2024** Ranks and as per their eligibility criteria, applicable regulations, guidelines.
- The University will release final merit position of eligible candidates for exercising web options after verification of uploaded scanned certificates by Dr.YSR UHS, Vijayawada.

#### 9. Fee Structure:

#### 9.1 University Fee:

All the selected candidates shall pay the Non - Refundable University Fee of ₹.49,600/-

#### 9.2 TUITION FEE:

Tuition fee structure for the current academic year 2024-25 will be as decided by the Govt. of Andhra Pradesh, subject to the outcome of W.P.Nos.32975, 33162 & 35090 of 2022.

#### Previous year (2023-24) fee structure for information:

| Name of the course           | Fee for Category- B<br>Management Quota<br>seats | Fee for Category- C<br>NRI / Institutional<br>Quota seats |
|------------------------------|--|---|
| Clinical Degree/Diploma      | ₹. 6,83,100/-                                    | ₹. 13,80,000/-  |
| Para Clinical Degree/Diploma | ₹. 4,99,790/-                                    | ₹. 8,05,000/-   |

#### 10. ADMISSION RULES:

The last date of joining of selected candidates will be communicated to them in the letter of selection.

- All the candidates joining the Post Graduate degree/diploma courses should execute bond on a stamped paper of Rs. 100/- value as prescribed in Annexure-IV to the effect that he/she will complete the prescribed period of training or in default to pay Rs.3,00,000/- + 18% GST to the University.
- As per G.O.Ms.No.67, HM&FW (C1) Department dated 21-04-2017 candidates have to pay the discontinuation penalty of Rs. 3,00,000/- + 18% GST and they will be debarred for three years for admission into Post Graduate Medical Degree/Diploma courses at the colleges in the State of Andhra Pradesh for admission into PG Medical courses subject to receipt of orders from the Government if any and as notified by the University from time to time.
- **11. ATTENDANCE:** Candidates selected for the various courses should be the whole-time students. The candidate is required to put in a minimum of 80% attendance during each calendar year for being eligible to appear for the University examination.

In a year all 365 days will be considered as working days and students should get 80% attendance each year separately to get eligibility for appearing University exams. The remaining days of absence (including maternity leave) will be considered for extension of study period.

- **12.LEAVE:** Students will be permitted to avail 30 days leave per year. No Post Graduate is allowed to go on leave more than 8(Eight) days at a stretch. In case the absence of the candidate availing Medical Leave/Maternity Leave/Any other Leave or unauthorized absence is beyond 30 days in a year, the study period of the candidate will be extended to the extent of such period. No other leave is permitted.
- **13.MATERNITY LEAVE:** Women students can avail maternity leave upto 180 days only once in their MDS course of study and the study period will be extended to the extent of Maternity leave availed. The candidate shall not be eligible to appear in the University examination till the completion of study period as per DCI Regulations (Duration of course).

- 14. BREAK OF STUDY AND RE-ADMISSION: If a student is absent continuously for a period of 91 days or more and seeks permission to attend the course, his / her application in prescribed format vide annexure V & VI by paying requisite fee in favour of Registrar, Dr YSR University of Health Sciences payable at Vijayawada shall be forwarded to the Registrar, Dr.YSR University of Health Sciences with the recommendation of the Principal. The candidates are advised to refer the regulations before submitting the application and paying the fee. If they fulfill the conditions, they may submit applications through the Principal of the College by paying the fee. A maximum of two spells of break of study is allowed during the entire period of course.
- **15.PRIVATE PRACTICE:** No Post Graduate is allowed to do any private practice or consultation and should not accept any part time employment in any State or Central or Quasi Government or Private organizations during the period of Post Graduation study. The Principal has to take appropriate action after giving opportunity for explanation, if any student violates this rule.
- **16. COLLEGE REGULATIONS:** Candidates are required to follow the rules and regulations of the college and should also abide by the regulations of the University. Under any circumstances they should not have any correspondence with the higher authorities directly without routing through proper channel.

#### 17. CLOSURE OF ADMISSIONS:

- The admissions shall be closed as on the date as notified by the DCI, New Delhi.
- Any vacancy as on the date of closure of admissions shall not be filled. They will
  not be carried forward to the next year as per the directions of Supreme Court of
  India.

#### **18.DURATION OF COURSE:**

The duration of P.G. Diploma courses is 2 years and P.G. Degree courses is 3 years from the date of commencement of the course. In case of students having a recognized two year Post Graduate Diploma course in a subject selected for PG Degree in the same subject, then the period of training including the period of examination, shall be two years. If the break of study is more than three months the candidate has to apply (vide Annexures-V & VI) to the University through the Principal/Dean of the college. The University can give permission to the candidate to complete the course as per Rules based on evidences produced by the candidate for the break of study.

#### 19.DISSERTATION:

The Post Graduates who are admitted must register the topic of their dissertation with the University within six months of commencement of the course and approval of the University should be obtained.

The dissertation should be submitted within 2½ years of commencement of the Course. In the case of the candidates who are granted exemption of one year of study period of degree course, the dissertation should be submitted within 1½ years of commencement of the course. If the above schedule is not followed the period of Post Graduation will be extended by six months.

- A Postgraduate student shall present one poster presentation, to read one paper at a National/State conference and to present one research paper which should be published/accepted for publication/sent for publication during the period of his/her Postgraduate studies so as to make him/her eligible to appear at the Postgraduate Degree University examination.
- ➤ The UGC Notification, dt.23-07-2018 published in the Gazette of India regarding "Promotion of Academic Integrity and Prevention of Plagiarism in Higher Educational Institutions, Regulations 2018" are in force from the academic year 2021-22.

#### 20. POWERS OF PRINCIPALS:

Notwithstanding anything contained in these regulations, the Principals of the respective Colleges may at any time before completion of the Post Graduate course either on their own or on the application of any person after due and proper enquiry and after giving the person two weeks time from the date of the receipt of the show cause notice to submit written explanation and on personal hearing, order, cancellation of admission to the 1<sup>st</sup> year Post Graduate Degree/Diploma course if in the documents attached thereto or in the Statements made either before the authority in charge of admission or the Principals or in any other manner. Against any such order of the Principal an appeal shall lie with the Registrar, Dr. YSR University of Health Sciences, A.P. Vijayawada.

#### 21.POWERS OF Dr.YSR UNIVERSITY OF HEALTH SCIENCES:

Dr.YSR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada may either suomoto or on an application made to them, call for and examine the records relating to any selection or admission or cancellation thereof in respect of the admission made by the concerned authority, for the purpose of satisfying themselves as to the correctness of legality or propriety of such selection or cancellation and pass such order in relation there to as they deem fit including cancellation of the selection already published or admission already made, provided that the University may, before cancelling such selection or admission, give an opportunity to the authority and to the person affected to show cause against such cancellation. Dr.YSR UHS has every right to cancel the admission of any candidate without any notice, if the certificates produced by the candidate are found to be fake/false/forged.

Note: If a candidate is found to have submitted false information such candidate is liable to be disqualified for admission and in case already admitted, the admission will be cancelled. Further disciplinary action against him/her will be initiated by the University as per rules.

#### 22. RAGGING:-

- The candidates who join PG Dental Courses should not indulge in any kind of agitation / strike / ragging activity inside / outside the college campus during the course of study. The candidates if found to take part in any such activities mentioned above will be expelled from the course / college at any part of the course of study and legal proceedings / criminal action will be initiated against them. A copy of the National Medical Commission (Prevention and Prohibition of Ragging in Medical Colleges and Institutions) Regulations, 2021 is also available in University website for information.
- The candidates applying for PG Dental Courses for the academic year 2024-25 are deemed to have read the contents in the Prospectus and agree with all conditions / clauses and will not have the right to challenge any of the clauses contained in the Prospectus and agree that the same is binding upon them.

## <u>Instructions to Candidates on Counselling Procedure:</u>

There will be four Rounds of counselling i.e., Phase 1, Phase 2, Phase 3 (Mop up) and Stray Round.(SUBJECT TO CHANGE AS PER THE GUIDELINES OF DGHS / DCI NORMS & UHS Phase-I counselling:

| 2 As per the year 2023-24 Notifications for Stray/Special Stray rounds of the year 2023-24 and allotted seats but not reported/join CQ/MQ counsellings for the year 2024-25 (List of debarred of website).  3 As per G.O.Ms.No.67. dt.21-04-2017, the candidates who hacademic year 2021-22 irrespective of their admission bate year i.e., 2024-25(List of debarred candidates displayed on the candidates are informed that, there is no limit of choices Candidates can exercise any number of options for any available.  5 Candidates are instructed to be careful while exercising option of the saved options. Candidates are advised to exercise options for they are genuinely interested. If they are not interested to they are advised not exercise options for the same.  6 The selected candidates can download the provisional allot Fee of Rs.49,600/- through payment gateway and report to the or before the date specified in the allotment letter. University any circumstances.  7 The selected candidates shall produce all the Original certifications of complete the process of admission. If the caper regulations to complete the admission process in the admission will be cancelled automatically.  8 The verification of original certificates will be conducted at the College and in case of any discrepancy, the Provisional allot be initiated. If the candidate slides to other college (i.e., affit subsequent Phases of counselling the tuition fee will be sent college where the amount is held.  9 If a candidate of Phase-I counselling has not joined/reported is seat shall not be available for that candidate to exercise we phases of counselling in order to prevent the blocking of seat of the phase-I candidates who have reported the allotted seat of Phase-I candidates who have reported the allotted seat of Phase-I candidates who have reported the allotted seat of Phase-I candidates who have reported the allotted seat of Phase-I candidates who have reported the allotted seat of Phase-I candidates.   | ite for information of the students before   |
|--|--|
| academic year 2021-22 irrespective of their admission bate year i.e., 2024-25(List of debarred candidates displayed on the candidates are informed that, there is no limit of choices Candidates can exercise any number of options for any available.  5 Candidates are instructed to be careful while exercising option of the saved options. Candidates are advised to exercise options they are genuinely interested. If they are not interested to they are advised not exercise options for the same.  6 The selected candidates can download the provisional allot Fee of Rs.49,600/- through payment gateway and report to the or before the date specified in the allotment letter. University any circumstances.  7 The selected candidates shall produce all the Original certificates will be conducted at the candidates of any discrepancy, the Provisional allot be initiated. If the candidate slides to other college (i.e., affil subsequent Phases of counselling the tuition fee will be sent college where the amount is held.  9 If a candidate of Phase-I counselling has not joined/reported in seat shall not be available for that candidate to exercise we phases of counselling in order to prevent the blocking of seat of the provisional shall not be available for that candidate to exercise we phase of counselling in order to prevent the blocking of seat of the provisional candidates of Phase-I Counselling are eligible for round only.   | ands of CQ/MQ counsellings conducted for leading are debarred for admissions into red candidates displayed on the University |
| Candidates can exercise any number of options for any available.  5 Candidates are instructed to be careful while exercising option of the saved options. Candidates are advised to exercise options they are genuinely interested. If they are not interested to they are advised not exercise options for the same.  6 The selected candidates can download the provisional allot Fee of Rs.49,600/- through payment gateway and report to to or before the date specified in the allotment letter. University any circumstances.  7 The selected candidates shall produce all the Original certificates bonds etc., and complete the process of admission. If the caper regulations to complete the admission process in the admission will be cancelled automatically.  8 The verification of original certificates will be conducted at the College and in case of any discrepancy, the Provisional allot be initiated. If the candidate slides to other college (i.e., affil subsequent Phases of counselling the tuition fee will be sent college where the amount is held.  9 If a candidate of Phase-I counselling has not joined/reported it seat shall not be available for that candidate to exercise we phases of counselling in order to prevent the blocking of seat 10 The Joined candidates of Phase-I Counselling are eligible for round only.  11 Candidates who have reported the allotted seat of Phase-I candidates are advised to exercise options.   | batch will be debarred for this academic   |
| of the saved options. Candidates are advised to exercise optithey are genuinely interested. If they are not interested to they are advised not exercise options for the same.  6 The selected candidates can download the provisional allot Fee of Rs.49,600/- through payment gateway and report to to or before the date specified in the allotment letter. University any circumstances.  7 The selected candidates shall produce all the Original certification bonds etc., and complete the process of admission. If the caper regulations to complete the admission process in the admission will be cancelled automatically.  8 The verification of original certificates will be conducted at the College and in case of any discrepancy, the Provisional allot be initiated. If the candidate slides to other college (i.e., affil subsequent Phases of counselling the tuition fee will be sent college where the amount is held.  9 If a candidate of Phase-I counselling has not joined/reported it seat shall not be available for that candidate to exercise we phase of counselling in order to prevent the blocking of seat the Joined candidates of Phase-I Counselling are eligible for round only.  10 The Joined candidates of Phase-I Counselling are eligible for round only.  |  |
| Fee of Rs.49,600/- through payment gateway and report to to or before the date specified in the allotment letter. University any circumstances.  7 The selected candidates shall produce all the Original certification bonds etc., and complete the process of admission. If the caper regulations to complete the admission process in the admission will be cancelled automatically.  8 The verification of original certificates will be conducted at the College and in case of any discrepancy, the Provisional allottic be initiated. If the candidate slides to other college (i.e., affil subsequent Phases of counselling the tuition fee will be sent college where the amount is held.  9 If a candidate of Phase-I counselling has not joined/reported is seat shall not be available for that candidate to exercise we phases of counselling in order to prevent the blocking of seat the Joined candidates of Phase-I Counselling are eligible for round only.  10 The Joined candidates of Phase-I Counselling are eligible for round only.  | e options in Courses and colleges in which   |
| bonds etc., and complete the process of admission. If the caper regulations to complete the admission process in the admission will be cancelled automatically.  8 The verification of original certificates will be conducted at the College and in case of any discrepancy, the Provisional allotte be initiated. If the candidate slides to other college (i.e., affil subsequent Phases of counselling the tuition fee will be sent college where the amount is held.  9 If a candidate of Phase-I counselling has not joined/reported is seat shall not be available for that candidate to exercise we phases of counselling in order to prevent the blocking of seat 10 The Joined candidates of Phase-I Counselling are eligible for round only.  11 Candidates who have reported the allotted seat of Phase-I calculates and the process of the process of admission. If the caper regulations is the caper regulation of the provision of the provision of the provision of the provision of the process of admission. If the process in the process in the process in the admission of the provision of the | rt to the Principal of the Allotted College on   |
| College and in case of any discrepancy, the Provisional allot be initiated. If the candidate slides to other college (i.e., affil subsequent Phases of counselling the tuition fee will be sent college where the amount is held.  9    If a candidate of Phase-I counselling has not joined/reported i seat shall not be available for that candidate to exercise we phases of counselling in order to prevent the blocking of seat 10    The Joined candidates of Phase-I Counselling are eligible for round only.  11    Candidates who have reported the allotted seat of Phase-I candidates.  | the candidate does not fulfil the criteria as  |
| seat shall not be available for that candidate to exercise we phases of counselling in order to prevent the blocking of seat   The Joined candidates of Phase-I Counselling are eligible for round only.  Candidates who have reported the allotted seat of Phase-I candidates.  | allotment will be cancelled and action will , affiliated colleges of Dr.YSR UHS) during                                      |
| round only.  11 Candidates who have reported the allotted seat of Phase-I ca   | se web options in Phase-II and all further   |
| ±  | le for upgradation up to Phase-III (Mop Up)  |
|  | e-I can opt for free exit as per the schedule  |

#### Phase-II Counselling:

- 1. Procedure for exercising web options as explained at Phase-I counselling
- 2. Eligibility for Exercising web options in Phase-II Counselling

The following candidates are eligible:

- a) All the candidates who have been allotted a seat in Phase-I and reported.
- b) All the candidates who have not been allotted any seat in Phase-I counselling.
- c) All candidates who have been allotted a seat in Phase-I but not reported/not joined at the allotted colleges. However, if a candidate has not joined/reported in the allotted seat of Phase-I then that particular seat shall not be available for that candidate to exercise web options in Phase-II counselling.
- d) The Joined candidates of Phase-I/Phase-II Counselling are eligible for upgradation up to Phase-III (MoP Up) round only.
- 3. Candidates who have reported the allotted seat of Phase-I and/or Phase-II can opt for free exit as per the schedule which will be notified.

#### Phase-III/Mop Up Round:

- 1. Procedure for exercising web options as explained at Phase-I counselling Eligibility for Exercising web options in Phase-III (MoP Up) Counselling
- 2. The following candidates are eligible:
  - a) All the candidates who have been allotted and reported to the Phase-I/Phase-II seat.
  - b) All the candidates who have not been allotted any seat in Phase-I/Phase-II counselling.
  - c) All candidates who have been allotted a seat in Phase-I/Phase-II but not reported/not joined at the allotted colleges. However, if a candidate has not joined/reported in the allotted seat of Phase-I/Phase-II then that particular seat shall not be available for that candidate to exercise web options in Phase-III/Mop Up counselling.
  - d) The Joined candidates who are holding a seat in Phase-I or Phase-II or Phase-III(Mop Up) Counselling are not eligible for Stray or any further rounds.
  - e) If any candidate does not join Phase-III seat cannot participate in further rounds of counselling conducted by State.
  - f) MCC of DGHS will share the data of joined candidates in Round 1, Round 2, Round 3 counsellings with all the participating States. Similarly, the participating States will also share the data of joined candidates. Candidates who have joined up to Round 3 of MCC counselling, the allotted candidates of Stray Vacancy round of MCC counselling and CQ Stray Vacancy round of AP State will be filtered and weeded out before processing for MQ Stray Vacancy round of counselling of AP State.
  - e) As per MCC counselling Scheme 2024, the joined candidates up to Round 3 of MCC counselling cannot upgrade or resign after Round 3. If any candidate is allotted seat in Round 3 of AIQ/Deemed/Central Quota and also allotted a seat in Phase-III/ Mop Up counselling of the AP State, later found that the candidate has joined in Round 3 of AIQ/Deemed/Central Quota, in such cases the seat allotted in Phase-III/ Mop Up counselling of the AP State shall be automatically cancelled at any stage, without any prior notice. Vacancies arising due to such cancellation will be filled up in Stray Vacancy round. Hence, candidates are advised to exercise caution while taking a decision to join in either Round 3 of AIQ or Phase-III (Mop Up) of State Counselling.

#### STRAY VACANCY COUNSELLING:

- 1. Fresh registrations and fresh choice filling for Final Stray Vacancy Round. The choices filled during earlier phases will not be considered for allotment in Stray Vacancy Round.
  - > The choices filled during Phase-III (Mop Up) will not be considered for allotment in Stray Vacancy Round.
  - > Candidates registered and present in the Final Merit list of Competent Authority quota but not holding a seat or got no seat in Phase-I, Phase-II & Phase-III(Mop Up) {AIQ/Deemed/State} and willing to participate in the Stray vacancy round of Management Quota can opt to upload relevant documents for S2 (NRI) and S3 (Institutional Quota) without fresh registration.

#### 2. Eligible candidates:

- a) The candidates who have not been allotted in Phase 1, Phase 2, Phase 3 of counselling.
- b) The candidates who have been allotted, but not joined in Phase 1, Phase 2 of State Quota and All India Quota are eligible to participate in this counselling.
- c) A Candidate who has not registered and not choice locked in the Phase 1 or Phase 2 or Phase 3(Mop up) ONLINE COUNSELLING will be permitted to attend Stray Round of ONLINE COUNSELLING.

#### Not Eligible Candidates:

- a) The candidates who are holding MDS seat in Round 1, Round 2 and Round 3 (Mop Up) of State Counselling are not eligible to participate in Stray round of counselling.
- b) The candidate who is holding a seat allotted in Round 1 & Round 2 and Round 3 in All India Quota/Deemed universities (conducted by MCC/DGHS).
- c) The candidates who have been allotted in stray round of All India Quota/Deemed universities (conducted by MCC/DGHS) are not eligible to participate in State Stray Round of counselling.
- d) The candidates who have been allotted in stray round of Competent Authority Quota of the AP State are not eligible to participate in State MQ Stray Round of counselling.
- e) A candidate allotted a seat in Phase 3 (Mop up) of State counselling and not joined the seat cannot participate in further rounds of State Counselling.
- If a candidate is allotted a seat in Stray round, he/she has to report & join the allotted seat/college else he/she **shall be debarred** from participating A.P. State Counselling for admission to PG Dental Courses under both Competent Authority Quota seats & Management Quota seats for subsequent 1 (one) academic year.

## ANNEXURE - I

# $\frac{\text{The Seats available in PG (Dental) courses under Management Quota for the academic year}{2024\text{-}25}$

## Statement Showing Annual Intake in MDS Course for the Academic Year 2024-25

| Туре | Area | College Name   | Course Name   | Total | CQ | MQ |
|------|------|--|---|-------|----|----|
| Pvt  | AU   | ANIL NEERUKONDA INST. OF<br>DENTAL SCIENCES,<br>VISAKHAPATNAM                    | Master of Dental Surgery in Conservative Dentistry & Endodontics                    | 6     | 3  | 3  |
|      |      |  | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral Medicine & Radiology                               | 2     | 1  | 1  |
|      |      |  | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery                            | 5     | 2  | 3  |
|      |      |  | Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics                | 6     | 3  | 3  |
|      |      |  | Master of Dental Surgery in Pediatric and Preventive Dentistry                      | 5     | 2  | 3  |
|      |      |  | Master of Dental Surgery in Periodontology  | 2     | 1  | 1  |
|      |      |  | Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics and Crown & Bridge                       | 5     | 2  | 3  |
|      |      |  | Master of Dental Surgery in Public Health Dentistry                                 | 3     | 2  | 1  |
|      |      | ANIL NEERUKONDA INST. OF<br>DENTAL SCIENCES,<br>VISAKHAPATNAM Total              |   | 34    | 16 | 18 |
|      |      | DRS.SUDHA AND NAGESWARA RAO<br>INSTITUTE OF DENTAL SCIENCES,<br>GANNAVARAM       | Master of Dental Surgery in Conservative Dentistry & Endodontics                    | 5     | 3  | 2  |
|      |      |  | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery                            | 5     | 3  | 2  |
|      |      |  | Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics                | 5     | 3  | 2  |
|      |      |  | Master of Dental Surgery in Pediatric and Preventive Dentistry                      | 3     | 2  | 1  |
|      |      |  | Master of Dental Surgery in Periodontology  | 5     | 3  | 2  |
|      |      |  | Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics and Crown & Bridge                       | 5     | 3  | 2  |
|      |      | DRS.SUDHA AND NAGESWARA RAO<br>INSTITUTE OF DENTAL SCIENCES,<br>GANNAVARAM Total |   | 28    | 17 | 11 |
|      |      | GITAM DENTAL COLLEGE,<br>VISAKHAPATNAM   | Master of Dental Surgery in Conservative Dentistry & Endodontics                    | 5     | 3  | 2  |
|      |      |  | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral Medicine & Radiology                               | 3     | 2  | 1  |
|      |      |  | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery                            | 3     | 2  | 1  |
|      |      |  | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral and Maxillofacial Pathology & and Oral Microbilogy | 3     | 2  | 1  |
|      |      |  | Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics                | 5     | 3  | 2  |
|      |      |  | Master of Dental Surgery in Pediatric and Preventive Dentistry                      | 5     | 3  | 2  |
|      |      |  | Master of Dental Surgery in Periodontology  | 5     | 3  | 2  |
|      |      |  | Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics and Crown & Bridge                       | 5     | 3  | 2  |

| GITAM DENTAL COLLEGE,<br>VISAKHAPATNAM Total                       |   | 34 | 21 | 13 |
|--|---|----|----|----|
| GSL DENTAL COLLEGE HOSPITAL, RAJMAHENDRAVARAM.                     | Master of Dental Surgery in Conservative Dentistry & Endodontics                    | 3  | 2  | 1  |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral Medicine & Radiology                               | 2  | 1  | 1  |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery                            | 3  | 2  | 1  |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral and Maxillofacial Pathology & and Oral Microbilogy | 2  | 1  | 1  |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics                | 3  | 2  | 1  |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Pediatric and Preventive Dentistry                      | 3  | 2  | 1  |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Periodontology  | 2  | 1  | 1  |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics and Crown & Bridge                       | 3  | 2  | 1  |
| GSL DENTAL COLLEGE HOSPITAL,<br>RAJMAHENDRAVARAM. Total            |   | 21 | 13 | 8  |
| KONASEEMA INSTITUTE OF DENTAL<br>SCIENCES, AMALAPURAM              | Master of Dental Surgery in Conservative Dentistry & Endodontics                    | 3  | 1  | 2  |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery                            | 3  | 1  | 2  |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics                | 3  | 1  | 2  |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics and Crown & Bridge                       | 2  | 1  | 1  |
| KONASEEMA INSTITUTE OF DENTAL SCIENCES, AMALAPURAM Total           |   | 11 | 4  | 7  |
| LENORA INSTITUTE OF DENTAL SCIENCES, RAJAMAHENDRAVARAM             | Diploma in Conservative Dentistry<br>Endodontics                                    | 2  | 1  | 1  |
|  | Diploma in Orthodontics & Dentofacial Orthopaedics                                  | 1  | 1  | -  |
|  | Diploma in Pedodontics & Preventive Dentistry                                       | 2  | 1  | 1  |
|  | Diploma in Prosthodontics & Crown & Bridge  | 1  | 1  | -  |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Conservative Dentistry & Endodontics                    | 5  | 3  | 2  |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral Medicine & Radiology                               | 3  | 2  | 1  |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics                | 5  | 3  | 2  |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Pediatric and Preventive Dentistry                      | 5  | 3  | 2  |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Periodontology  | 5  | 3  | 2  |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics and Crown & Bridge                       | 5  | 3  | 2  |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Public Health Dentistry                                 | 3  | 2  | 1  |
| LENORA INSTITUTE OF DENTAL<br>SCIENCES, RAJAMAHENDRAVARAM<br>Total |   | 37 | 23 | 14 |
| ,  | 19  |    |    |    |

| SIBAR INSTITUTE OF DENTAL SCIENCES, GUNTUR                         | Master of Dental Surgery in Conservative Dentistry & Endodontics                    | 6  | 3  | 3  |
|--|---|----|----|----|
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral Medicine & Radiology                               | 3  | 2  | 1  |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery                            | 5  | 3  | 2  |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral and Maxillofacial Pathology & and Oral Microbilogy | 3  | 2  | 1  |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics                | 5  | 3  | 2  |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Pediatric and Preventive Dentistry                      | 6  | 3  | 3  |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Periodontology  | 6  | 3  | 3  |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics and Crown & Bridge                       | 6  | 3  | 3  |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Public Health Dentistry                                 | 4  | 2  | 2  |
| SIBAR INSTITUTE OF DENTAL SCIENCES, GUNTUR Total                   |   | 44 | 24 | 20 |
| SREE SAI DENTAL COLLEGE<br>RESEARCH INSTITUTE, SRIKAKULAM          | Master of Dental Surgery in Conservative Dentistry & Endodontics                    | 3  | 2  | 1  |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics                | 3  | 2  | 1  |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Periodontology  | 3  | 2  | 1  |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics and Crown & Bridge                       | 3  | 2  | 1  |
| SREE SAI DENTAL COLLEGE<br>RESEARCH INSTITUTE, SRIKAKULAM<br>Total |   | 12 | 8  | 4  |
| ST.JOSEPH DENTAL COLLEGE,<br>ELURU                                 | Master of Dental Surgery in Conservative Dentistry & Endodontics                    | 6  | 3  | 3  |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral Medicine & Radiology                               | 3  | 2  | 1  |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery                            | 3  | 2  | 1  |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral and Maxillofacial Pathology & and Oral Microbilogy | 3  | 2  | 1  |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and<br>Dentofacial Orthopedics             | 5  | 3  | 2  |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Pediatric and Preventive Dentistry                      | 5  | 3  | 2  |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Periodontology  | 3  | 2  | 1  |
|  | Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics and Crown & Bridge                       | 3  | 2  | 1  |
| ST.JOSEPH DENTAL COLLEGE,<br>ELURU Total                           |   | 31 | 19 | 12 |

|     | VISHNU DENTAL COLLEGE,<br>BHEEMAVARAM,                                | Master of Dental Surgery in Conservative Dentistry & Endodontics                       | 6  | 3  | 3  |
|-----|---|--|----|----|----|
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral Medicine & Radiology                                  | 5  | 3  | 2  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery                               | 2  | 1  | 1  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral and Maxillofacial Pathology & and Oral Microbilogy    | 5  | 3  | 2  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics                   | 6  | 3  | 3  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Pediatric and Preventive Dentistry                         | 6  | 3  | 3  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Periodontology   | 5  | 3  | 2  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics and Crown & Bridge                          | 6  | 3  | 3  |
|     | VISHNU DENTAL COLLEGE,<br>BHEEMAVARAM, Total                          |  | 41 | 22 | 19 |
| SVU | CKS TEJA INSTITUTE OF DENTAL<br>SCIENCES RESEARCH, TIRUPATHI          | Master of Dental Surgery in Conservative Dentistry & Endodontics                       | 6  | 3  | 3  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral Medicine & Radiology                                  | 3  | 2  | 1  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery                               | 3  | 2  | 1  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral and Maxillofacial Pathology & and Oral Microbilogy    | 3  | 2  | 1  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics                   | 6  | 3  | 3  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Pediatric and Preventive Dentistry                         | 3  | 2  | 1  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Periodontology   | 2  | 1  | 1  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics and Crown & Bridge                          | 6  | 3  | 3  |
|     | CKS TEJA INSTITUTE OF DENTAL<br>SCIENCES RESEARCH, TIRUPATHI<br>Total |  | 32 | 18 | 14 |
|     | G. PULLA REDDY DENTAL COLLEGE<br>& HOSPITAL, NANDYAL                  | Master of Dental Surgery in Conservative Dentistry & Endodontics                       | 6  | 3  | 3  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral Medicine & Radiology                                  | 2  | 1  | 1  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral and<br>Maxillofacial Pathology & and Oral Microbilogy | 3  | 2  | 1  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics                   | 3  | 2  | 1  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Pediatric and Preventive Dentistry                         | 3  | 1  | 2  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Periodontology   | 3  | 2  | 1  |
|     |   | Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics and Crown & Bridge                          | 3  | 2  | 1  |
|     | G. PULLA REDDY DENTAL COLLEGE<br>& HOSPITAL, NANDYAL Total            |  | 23 | 13 | 10 |

| NARAYANA DENTAL COLLEGE,<br>NELLORE       | Master of Dental Surgery in Conservative Dentistry & Endodontics                    | 5   | 3   | 2   |
|---|---|-----|-----|-----|
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral Medicine & Radiology                               | 6   | 3   | 3   |
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery                            | 5   | 3   | 2   |
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Oral and Maxillofacial Pathology & and Oral Microbilogy | 3   | 2   | 1   |
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Orthodontics and Dentofacial Orthopedics                | 5   | 3   | 2   |
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Pediatric and Preventive Dentistry                      | 5   | 3   | 2   |
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Periodontology  | 5   | 3   | 2   |
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Prosthodontics and Crown & Bridge                       | 6   | 3   | 3   |
|   | Master of Dental Surgery in Public Health Dentistry                                 | 3   | 2   | 1   |
| NARAYANA DENTAL COLLEGE,<br>NELLORE Total |   | 43  | 25  | 18  |
| G   | rand Total  | 391 | 223 | 168 |

#### BEWARE OF TOUTS, BROKERS OR MIDDLEMEN

Few persons may approach you saying they have known people in Dr. Y.S.R. University of Health Sciences who guarantee Medical/Dental seats through unfair means during counseling or after counselling. Counseling for all Medical / Dental seats are conducted and allotted as per the existing rules and in the ambit of the State Government as per NEET merit score and prioritized options exercised by the candidate. Hence, candidates and parents should not trust any of such persons. Any information regarding counselling will be placed in the University official website only.

\*\*\*\*

Sd/-

VIJAYAWADA Dt: .07.2024 (Dr.V.RADHIKA REDDY) REGISTRAR

# ANNEXURE - II

## **AFFIDAVIT**

| (This declaration is to be given by a student / ward as well as his/her NRI                          |  |  |  |  |  |  |
|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| Guardian for admission under NRI Category -C (S2)  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| I, Dr  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| Numberward/S/o or  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| D/o offor admission into Post Graduate course in   |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| Category-C- S2 (NRI Quota) for the academic year 2024-25 in a Unaided Private                        |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| Dental Colleges affiliated to Dr. YSR UHS in the State of Andhra Pradesh do hereby                   |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| declare and state as under:  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
|  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| I declare that I am a ward S/o or D/o of /under Guardianship of                                      |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| Mr/MsS/o   |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| R/o  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
|  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| complete address of NRI of whom the candidate/declarant is a ward).                                  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| I declare that the said NRI shall pay my entire fee and other expenses for pursuing                  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| $\ensuremath{MDS}$ course and I further declare that the above facts stated are true and correct and |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| I am liable for any action in the event of concealment of facts.                                     |  |  |  |  |  |  |
|  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| (Signature of the Candidate)   |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| Declaration of NRI:  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| I,   |  |  |  |  |  |  |
|  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| D/o  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| under my Guardianship and I hereby irrevocably agree and undertake to provide                        |  |  |  |  |  |  |
|  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| financial support to him/her for payment of entire fee and other expenses for                        |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| pursuing MDS course for the academic year 2024-25 in any Unaided Private Dental                      |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| Colleges affiliated to Dr. YSR UHS in the State of Andhra Pradesh.                                   |  |  |  |  |  |  |
|  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| Date: (Name and Signature of the Guardian)   |  |  |  |  |  |  |

# ANNEXURE - III

# Sponsorship Certificate

(Institutional Quota Candidate for Category-C – S3)

| This is to certify th   | nat Dr   | S/c         | o or D/o Sri _ | NEET-                                      |  |  |  |  |
|---|--|-------------|----------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| 2024 (MDS) Roll Numb  | er   | _ NEET Ran  | kwas           | a bonafide student of                      |  |  |  |  |
| BDS course of   | Dental Co  | ollege,     | affiliate      | d to Dr YSR University                     |  |  |  |  |
| of Health Sciences, Vija  | yawada, AP.  |             |                |  |  |  |  |  |
| I, on behalf of the management of the college pleased to recommend his/her                                  |  |             |                |  |  |  |  |  |
| candidature for admis   | candidature for admission to Postgraduate course under the Category-C-S3 |             |                |  |  |  |  |  |
| (Institutional Quota)   |  |             |                |  |  |  |  |  |
|   |  | •           | _              | are of Dean/Principal<br>th Office Seal    |  |  |  |  |
|   |  | (Or)        |                |  |  |  |  |  |
| Sponsorship Certificate<br>(Institutional Quota Candidate for Category-C-S3)<br>Employee of the Institution |  |             |                |  |  |  |  |  |
| This is to certi  | fy that Dr.  |             | N              | EET-2024((MDS) Roll                        |  |  |  |  |
| Number  | _ NEET Ra  | nk i        | s an employe   | ee (or) his/her Parent                     |  |  |  |  |
| Sri/Smt   | _ who is a a   | an employee | of our Instit  | ution and working as                       |  |  |  |  |
| from  | to   | period in   |                |  |  |  |  |  |
| College affiliated to Dr YSR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada.                                     |  |             |                |  |  |  |  |  |
| I, on behalf of the Management of the college, pleased to recommend the name                                |  |             |                |  |  |  |  |  |
| of Dr candidature for admission into Postgraduate (Dental) course   |  |             |                |  |  |  |  |  |
| under the Category-C (Institutional Quota-S3)   |  |             |                |  |  |  |  |  |
|   |  |             |                |  |  |  |  |  |
| Date:   |  |             | _              | ure of Dean/Principal<br>with Office seal) |  |  |  |  |

## Annexure - IV

# (Non-Judicial Stamped paper for Rs. 100/-) (For all candidates)

| I,  | Dr        |             |           |                   | se    | elected  | for    | Post   | Grad    | ıate |
|---|-----------|-------------|-----------|-------------------|-------|----------|--------|--------|---------|------|
| Degree/Di   | iploma fo | or the year | 2024-     | <b>25</b> do here | eby · | underta  | ke to  | comple | ete the | said |
| course as   | per the   | requireme   | ents of t | the Univers       | sity. | In the   | event  | of my  | leaving | the  |
| studies   | after     | joining     | the       | course,           | I     | unde     | rtake  | to     | pay     | to   |
| Dr. YSR UHS a sum of Rs.3,00,000 + 18% GST (Rs.3,54,000/-). |           |             |           |                   |       |          |        |        |         |      |
|   |           |             |           |                   |       |          |        |        |         |      |
|   |           |             |           |                   |       |          |        |        |         |      |
| DATE:   |           |             |           |                   | Sig   | nature ( | of the | Candid | ate:    |      |
| Witness:  |           |             |           |                   |       |          |        |        |         |      |
| 1. Signatur   | e:        |             |           |                   |       |          |        |        |         |      |
| Name an   | nd addres | s in full   |           |                   |       |          |        |        |         |      |
|   |           |             |           |                   |       |          |        |        |         |      |

Name and address in full

# ANNEXURE - V DECLARATION

| I  | Son of/Daughter of                                     |  |  |  |  |
|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| Residing at                              | and admitted to in $1^{st}$ year of (Name              |  |  |  |  |
| of the MDS course) at                    | (Name of the College) for the                          |  |  |  |  |
| academic year 2024-25 do hereby so       | lemnly affirm and sincerely state as follows:          |  |  |  |  |
|  |  |  |  |  |  |
| I declare that I shall abide by the rule | s and regulations prescribed by the Dr. YSR University |  |  |  |  |
| of Health Sciences, Vijayawada for       | the (course) including regulations for                 |  |  |  |  |
| re-admission after the break of study.   |  |  |  |  |  |
|  |  |  |  |  |  |
|  |  |  |  |  |  |
| Date:                                    | Signature of candidate                                 |  |  |  |  |
|  |  |  |  |  |  |
| ,  | / Countersigned /                                      |  |  |  |  |
|  |  |  |  |  |  |
|  | Dean / Principal / Director                            |  |  |  |  |
|  | (With Office seal)                                     |  |  |  |  |

## ANNEXURE - VI

### PROFORMA FOR RE-ADMISSION

| 1.  | Name of the student   | :           |   |                   |  |  |  |
|---|---|-------------|---|-------------------|--|--|--|
| 2.  | Name of the course and period of study  | :           |   |                   |  |  |  |
| 3.  | Name of the College   | :           |   |                   |  |  |  |
| 4.  | Date of joining the course  | :           |   |                   |  |  |  |
| 5.  | Duration of break of study  | :           | From:                                     | То:               |  |  |  |
| 6.  | Details of examinations appeared & Subjects passed  | :           |   |                   |  |  |  |
| 7.  | Reasons for the period of break of study of the course (Evidence should be produce                            | :<br>ed)    |   |                   |  |  |  |
| 8.  | The details of previous break of study (Enclose Xerox copy of the permission Order of the University, if any) | :           |   |                   |  |  |  |
| 9.  | Whether any disciplinary case is pending  | :           |   |                   |  |  |  |
| 10.   | Whether the candidate has registered with this University, if so furnish the Regn. No.                        | :           |   |                   |  |  |  |
| 11.   | Details of Fee paid   | :<br>:<br>: | DD.No:<br>Date<br>Bank                    |                   |  |  |  |
|   | ₹. 7,000/- (Processing fee : ₹. 2000/-<br>+ Re-admission/break of study fee: ₹. 50                            | 00/-,       | Amount Paid ₹.                            |                   |  |  |  |
|   | (The DD should in favour of the Registrar, I  | Dr. YS      | SR UHS payable at Vija                    | yawada)           |  |  |  |
|   | Previous Correspondence if any made (Furnish copies of relevant records) Signature of the candidate           |             | :   |                   |  |  |  |
| 13. Remarks of the Dean / Principal / Director concerned: |   |             |   |                   |  |  |  |
| Certifie<br>correct                                       | ed that the details furnished above in respec   | t of th     | e candidate are verified                  | d and found to be |  |  |  |
| Date:   |   |             |   |                   |  |  |  |
| Place:  |   |             |   |                   |  |  |  |
|   |   | Signa       | ature of the Dean/Princ<br>With Office Se |                   |  |  |  |